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Years Ended December31 2009 2008 2007

Dollars in millions except share per share and employee amounts

Operating Performance

Net Sales $1124.4 $1364.8 $125.6

Operating Profit 94.9 130.2 125.1

Income from Continuing Operations 21.7 48.4 50.5

Net Income Attributable to Koppers 18.8 138.0 63.3

Diluted Earnings per Share Continuing Operations 0.92 2.30 2.29

Financial Condition

Total Assets $644.4 $661.1 $669.3

Total Debt 335.3 374.9 440.2

Cash and Cash Equivalents 58.4 63.1 13.8

Other Data

Capital Expenditures $18.0 $37.1 $24.3

Number of Employees 1616 1747 1947

Stock Information

Market Price per ShareHigh $34.00 $51.9 $46.91

Market Price per ShareLow 9.29 12.60 23.12

Dividends per Share 0.88 0.88 0.68

Shares Outstanding DUOs 20455 20429 20827

Set forth above are line graph and table comparing

the csmulative total returns lassuming reinvestment of

dividendnl during the period commencing on February

2006 the date of Koppers Holdings Inc.s initial

public offering and ending December 31 2009 of $100

invested in each of Koppers Holdings Inc.s common

stock the Standard Poors 500 Index and the Russell

2000 Index Because our competitors are principally

privately held concerns or subsidiaries or divisions of

corporations engaged
in multiple lines of business we

do not believe it is feasible to construct peer group

industry comparison The Russell 2000 Index which

includes corporations both larger and smaller than

Koppers Holdings Inc is composed of corporations

with an average market capitalization similar to us

Value at 2/1/06 t2/3t/06 t2/3t/07 t2/31/08 t2/3t/09

Koppers $100.00 $tet.85 $325.40 $166.24 $243.85

SP500 $tOO.00 $t28.tO $tt8.42 $74.60 $94.34

Russell 2000 $tOO.00 $t08.63 $t06.92 $70.79 $90.02

Koppers

SP 500

Russell 2000



Koppers Holdings Inc 2009 Annual Report

To Our Shareholders

The year 2009 was year characterized by difficult

operating environment Nevertheless we were successful in

many ways and were able to manage through this period

producing profitability and cash flow while positioning the

company for growth as the global economy recovers

Our experience in 2009 leaves us prepared for new year

with new opportunities Our leadership team is optimistic

that we will begin to see new prospects for growth and

market improvements in 2010 We remain positive about

our two primary end-markets aluminum and railroads

as well as our other diverse end-markets that have

contributed to our success

Despite the economic downturn we took steps to prepare

Koppers to meet renewed demand in the years ahead

First we strengthened our balance sheet by refinancing our

debt saving $10 million year in interest expense while

extending our debt maturities

Second we increased our market shares through

opportunistic acquisitions through the purchase of two

railroad crosstie supply companies that should increase our

revenues by as much as $25 million annually Specifically

we acquired pre-plating business and crosstie

procurement business that will allow us to expand services

to our customers Additionally we extended long-term

contract with one of our largest Class railroad customers

securing their business through 2017

Our recent purchase of Cindu Chemicals B.V tar

distillation company in The Netherlands strengthens our

presence in Europe and enhances our ability to serve our

export markets We will continue to seek opportunities to

enhance our market position as we move forward in 2010

In addition to the Cindu acquisition we entered into new

long-term coal tar supply agreement with Corus Staal

Lastly we focused on adding new products to our core

businesses with the development of petroleum-based

pitches for the target shooting and electrode markets By

utilizing our existing distillation equipment and leveraging

our knowledge of petroleum-based feedstocks we have

expanded our end-markets as well as our customer base

When Koppers was formed in 1988 we envisioned

company that reached beyond North America Since that

time we have expanded our footprint to include Australia

Europe and Asia We currently have two plants in China

supplying the growing aluminum industry in the Middle

East where three large smelter projects have been

completed Plans to add additional capacity are underway

The Middle East with its abundant supply of low-cost

energy has become new growth engine for the global

aluminum industry and for Koppers

We know that our employees and the Koppers culture

are the foundation of our success Our strong commitment

to safety health and the environment produced one of

our greatest accomplishments in 2009 our best safety

year ever

As the global economy begins to recover Koppers is well

positioned for the growth opportunities that lie ahead

We have weathered the storm and maximized opportunities

to make strategic acquisitions and cost reductions that will

enable us to strongly benefit from restored economy

As our investors we thank you for making it possible to

build this strong foundation In the year ahead we look

forward to enhancing your investment in Koppers

Sincerely

Walter Turner

President and Chief Executive Officer
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We are leading integrated global provider of carbon compounds and commercial wood treatment products and services Our

products are used in variety of niche applications in diverse range of end-markets including the aluminum railroad

specialty chemical utility rubber concrete and steel industries We serve our customers through comprehensive global

manufacturing and distribution network with manufacturing facilities located in the United States Australia China the United

Kingdom and Denmark

We operate two principal business segments Carbon Materials Chemicals and Railroad Utility Products

Our operations are to substantial extent vertically integrated Through our Carbon Materials Chemicals business we

process coal tar into variety of products including carbon pitch creosote naphthalene and phthalic anhydride which are

intermediate materials necessary in the production of aluminum the pressure treatment of wood the production of high-

strength concrete and the production of plasticizers and specialty chemicals respectively Through our Railroad Utility

Products business we believe that we are the largest supplier of railroad crossties to the North American railroads Two of our

customers CSX Corporation and Alcoa Inc each represent greater than ten percent of our consolidated sales

Carbon Materials Chemicals

Carbon pitch naphthalene and creosote are produced through the distillation of coal tar by-product generated through the

processing of coal into coke for use in steel and iron manufacturing Coal tar distillation involves the conversion of coal tar into

variety of intermediate chemical products in processes beginning with distillation During the distillation process heat and

vacuum are utilized to separate coal tar into three primary components carbon pitch approximately 50 percent chemical oils

approximately 20 percent and creosote approximately 30 percent The diagram below shows the streams derived from coal

tar distillation

COAL
TAR

Carbon Pitch 50%__________ _____________
Chemical Oils 20% Creosote 30%

Naphthaiene

Phthaiic Anhydride

PRIMARY END MARKETS

Construction Wood Treating

Plastic and and Carbon

_______________________
Paint Industries Black Industries

PRIMARY END PRODUCTS

Railroad Crossties

Vinyl Paint Concrete
Utility Poles and

and Fiberglass AutomobileTires

Our Carbon Materials Chemicals business CMC manufactures the following principal products

carbon pitch critical raw material used in the production of aluminum and steel

naphthalene used for the production of phthalic anhydride and as surfactant in the production of concrete

phthalic anhydride used in the production of plasticizers polyester resins and alkyd paints

Aluminum and

Steel Industries

Carbon Anodes

Cathodes and

Electrodes
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is strategically located near timber supplies to enable us to access raw materials and service customers effectively In addition

our crosstie treating plants are typically adjacent to our railroad customers track lines and our pole distribution yards are

typically located near our utility customers

Our RUP business manufactures its primary products and sells them directly to our customers through long-term contracts and

purchase orders negotiated by our regional sales personnel and coordinated through our marketing group at corporate

headquarters

Hardwoods such as oak and other species are the major raw materials in wood crossties Hardwood prices which account for

more than 50 percent of finished crossties cost fluctuate with the demand from competing hardwood lumber markets such

as oak flooring pallets and other specialty lumber products Weather conditions can be factor in the supply of raw material

as unusually wet or inclement conditions may make it difficult to harvest timber

In the United States hardwood lumber is procured by us from hundreds of small sawmills throughout the northeastern

midwestern and southern areas of the country The crossties are shipped via rail car or trucked directly to one of our crosstie

treating plants all of which are on line with major railroad The crossties are either air-stacked for period of six to twelve

months or artificially dried by process called boultonizing Once dried the crossties are pressure treated with creosote

product of our Carbon Materials Chemicals business

We believe we are the largest supplier of railroad crossties in North America There are several principal regional competitors in

this North American market Competitive factors in the railroad crosstie market include price quality service and security of

supply We believe we have competitive advantage due to our national network of treating plants and direct access to our

major customers rail lines which provide for security of supply and logistics advantages for our customers

Our RUP business largest customer base is the North American Class railroad market which buys approximately 80 percent

of all crossties produced in the United States and Canada We also have relationships with many of the approximately 550

short-line and regional rail lines The railroad crosstie market is mature market with approximately 21 million replacement

crossties both wood and non-wood purchased during 2009 We currently supply all seven of the North American Class

railroads and have contracts with six of them

Demand for railroad crossties may decline during winter months due to inclement weather conditions which make it difficult to

install railroad crossties As result operating results may vary from quarter to quarter depending on the severity of weather

conditions and other variables affecting our products

Utility poles are produced mainly from softwoods such as pine in the United States and from hardwoods of the eucalyptus

species in Australia Most of these poles are purchased from large timber owners and individual landowners and shipped to one

of our pole-peeling facilities While crossties are treated exclusively with creosote we treat poles with variety of preservatives

including pentachlorophenol copper chrome arsenates and creosote

In the United States the market for utility pole products is characterized by large number of small highly competitive

producers selling into price-sensitive industry The utility pole market is highly fragmented domestically with over 200

investor-owned electric and telephone utilities and 2900 smaller municipal utilities and rural electric associations In recent years

we have seen our utility pole volumes decrease due to industry deregulation its impact on maintenance programs and

overcapacity in the pole treating business We expect demand for
utility poles to remain at low levels In Australia in addition to

utility poles we market smaller poles to the agricultural landscape and vineyard markets

We have number of principal competitors in the U.S utility products market There are few barriers to entry in the utility

products market which consists primarily of regional wood treating companies operating small to medium-size plants and

serving local markets

Equity Investments

KSA Limited Partnership located in Portsmouth Ohio produces concrete crossties complementary product to our wood

treatment crosstie business We own 50 percent of KSA with the other 50 percent owned by subsidiaries of Heidelberg Cement

AG KSA Limited Partnership also provides concrete turnouts for rail traffic switching and used crosstie rehabilitation
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provisions primarily for environmental fines and remediation For the last three years our annual capital expenditures in

connection with environmental control facilities averaged approximately $6.7 million and annual operating expenses for

environmental matters excluding depreciation averaged approximately $12.5 million Management estimates that capital

expenditures in connection with matters relating to environmental control facilities will be approximately $11.5 million for 2010

We believe that we will have continuing significant expenditures associated with compliance with environmental laws and

regulations and to the extent not covered by insurance or available recoveries under third-party indemnification arrangements

for present and future remediation efforts at plant sites and third-party waste sites and other liabilities associated with

environmental matters There can be no assurance that these expenditures will not exceed current estimates and will not have

material adverse effect on our business financial condition cash flow and results of operations See Note 19 of the Notes to

Consolidated Financial Statements Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

Employees and Employee Relations

As of December 31 2009 we had 552 salaried employees and 1064 non-salaried employees Listed below is breakdown of

employees by our businesses including administration

Business
Salaried Non-Salaried Total

Carbon Materials Chemicals 265 429 694

Railroad Utility Products 213 631 844

Administration 74 78

Total Employees
552 1064 1616

Of our employees approximately 65 percent are represented by approximately different labor unions and are covered under

numerous labor agreements The United Steelworkers of America currently represent more than 300 of our employees at six of

our facilities and therefore represent the largest number of our unionized employees The seven labor agreements that expire

in 2010 cover approximately 25 percent of our total labor force

Internet Access

Our Internet address is www.koppers.com Our recent filings on Form 10-K 10-Q and 8-K and any amendments to those

documents can be accessed without charge on our website under Investor Relations SEC Filings The contents of our internet

site are not incorporated by reference into this document

ITEM 1A RISK FACTORS

You should carefully consider the risks described below before investing in our publicly traded securities Our business is subject

to the risks that affect many other companies such as competition technological obsolescence labor relations general

economic conditions geopolitical events and international operations

Risks Related to Our Business

conditions in the global economy and global capital markets may adversely affect our results of operations financial

condition and cash flows

Starting in 2008 and continuing in 2009 the U.S and global economy have undergone sudden sharp economic downturn

Global credit and capital markets have experienced unprecedented volatility and disruption and business credit and liquidity

have tightened in much of the world Consumer confidence and spending are down significantly and the rates of

unemployment and underemployment are increasing As result of current economic conditions including turmoil and

uncertainty in the capital markets credit markets have tightened significantly such that the ability to obtain new capital has

become more challenging and more expensive Several large financial institutions have either failed or been dependent on the

assistance of the U.S federal government to continue to operate as going concern It is difficult to determine the breadth and

duration of the economic and financial market problems and the many ways in which they may affect our suppliers customers

and business in general Nonetheless continuation or further worsening of these difficult financial and macroeconomic

conditions could have significant adverse effect on our sales profitability and results of operations Our business and
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We are dependent on major customers for significant portion of our net sales and the loss of one or more of our

major customers could result in significant reduction in our profitability

For the year ended December 31 2009 our top ten customers accounted for approximately 55 percent of our net sales During

this period our two largest customers each accounted for approximately 11 percent of our total net sales

One of our largest customers has significantly reduced its purchases of carbon pitch starting in the fourth quarter of 2008 due

to we believe global economic issues In addition this customer disclosed in July 2009 that it is actively evaluating competitive

alternatives to increase the availability of coal tar pitch and to reduce the cost of coal tar pitch The customer has disclosed that

these alternatives include expanding the range of product specifications expanding its global supply base for imported coal tar

pitch and backward integration The permanent loss of or significant decrease in the level of purchases by one or more of

our major customers could result in significant reduction in our profitability if we are unable to sell these volumes to alternate

customers at similar prices

Fluctuations in the price quality and availability of our primary raw materials could reduce our profitability

Our operations depend on an adequate supply of quality raw materials being available on timely basis The loss of key

source of supply or delay in shipments could cause significant increase in our operating expenses For example our

operations are highly dependent on relatively small number of freight transportation services We are also dependent on

utilizing specialized ocean-going transport vessels that we lease to deliver raw materials to our facilities and finished goods to

our customers Interruptions in such freight services could impair our ability to receive raw materials and ship finished products

in timely manner We are also exposed to price and quality risks associated with raw material purchases Such risks include the

following

The primary raw material used by our Carbon Materials Chemicals business is coal tar by-product of furnace coke

production shortage in the supply of domestic coal tar or reduction in the quality of coal tar could require us to increase

coal tar and carbon pitch imports as well as the use of petroleum substitutes to meet future carbon pitch demand This

could cause significant increase in our operating expenses if we are unable to pass these costs on to our customers

In certain circumstances coal tar may also be used as an alternative to fuel In the past increases in energy prices have

resulted in higher coal tar costs which we have attempted to pass through to our customers If these increased costs cannot

be passed through to our customers it could result in margin reductions for our coal tar-based products

The availability and cost of softwood and hardwood lumber are critical elements in our production of pole products and

railroad crossties respectively Historically the supply and cost of hardwood for railroad crossties have been subject to

availability and price pressures We may not be able to obtain wood raw materials at economical prices in the future

Our price realizations and profit margins for phthalic anhydride have historically fluctuated with the price of orthoxylene and

its relationship to our cost to produce naphthalene however during periods of excess supplies of phthalic anhydride

margins may be reduced despite high levels for orthoxylene prices

If the costs of raw materials increase significantly and we are unable to offset the increased costs with higher selling prices our

profitability will decline

Our products may be rendered obsolete or less attractive by changes in regulatory legislative or industry

requirements

Changes in regulatory legislative or industry requirements may render certain of our products obsolete or less attractive Our

ability to anticipate changes in these requirements especially changes in regulatory standards will be significant factor in our

ability to remain competitive We may not be able to comply in the future with new regulatory legislative and/or industrial

standards that may be necessary
for us to remain competitive and certain of our products may as result become obsolete or

less attractive to our customers

The development of new technologies or changes in our customers products could reduce the demand for our

products

Our products are used for variety of applications by our customers Changes in our customers products or processes may

enable our customers to reduce consumption of the products we produce or make our products unnecessary Customers may
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Actual costs and liabilities to us may exceed forecasted amounts Moreover currently unknown environmental issues such as

the discovery of additional contamination or the imposition of additional sampling or cleanup obligations with respect to our

sites or third party sites may result in significant additional costs and potentially significant expenditures could be required in

order to comply with future changes to environmental laws and regulations or the interpretation or enforcement thereof We

also are involved in various litigation and proceedings relating to environmental matters and toxic tort claims

Future climate change regulation could result in increased operating costs and reduced demand for our products

Although the United States has not ratified the Kyoto Protocol number of federal laws and regulations related to

greenhouse gas or GHG emissions are being considered by the U.S Environmental Protection Agency or EPA and in

Congress Various state and regional laws regulations and initiatives have been enacted or are being considered For example

on September 30 2009 the EPA released proposed rule that would impose requirements upon new and modified major

stationary sources emitting more than 25000 tons of GHG emissions per year On June 26 2009 the U.S House of

Representatives approved adoption of the American Clean Energy and Security Act of 2009 also known as the Waxman

Markey cap-and-trade legislation or ACESA The purpose of ACESA is to control and reduce emissions of GHGs in the United

States GHGs are certain gases including carbon dioxide and methane which may be contributing to warming of the Earths

atmosphere and other climatic changes ACESA would establish an economy-wide cap on emissions of GHGs in the United

States and would require an overall reduction in GHG emissions of 17 percent from 2005 levels by 2020 and by over 80

percent by 2050 Under ACESA most sources of GHG emissions would be required to obtain GHG emission allowances

corresponding to their annual emissions of GHGs The number of emission allowances issued each year would decline as

necessary to meet ACESAs 5-31 overall emission reduction goals As the number of GHG emission allowances declines each

year the cost or value of allowances is expected to escalate significantly The net effect of ACESA would be to impose

increasing costs on the combustion of carbon-based fuels such as coal oil refined petroleum products and natural gas

The U.S Senate has begun work on its own legislation for controlling and reducing emissions of GHGs in the United States If

the Senate adopts GHG legislation that is different from ACESA the Senate legislation would need to be reconciled with ACESA

and both chambers would be required to approve identical legislation before it could become law President Obama has

indicated that he is in support of the adoption of legislation to control and reduce emissions of GHGs through an emission

allowance permitting system that results in fewer allowances being issued each year but that allows parties to buy sell and

trade allowances as needed to fulfill their GHG emission obligations It is not possible at this time to predict whether or when

the Senate may act on climate change legislation or how any bill approved by the Senate would be reconciled with ACESA

In addition our operations in the United Kingdom and Denmark are subject to binding caps on GHG emissions imposed by

Member States of the European Union as result of the European Commissions directive implementing the Kyoto Protocol

Under this directive companies receive from the relevant Member States set limitations on the levels of GHG emissions from

their industrial facilities These allowances are tradable so as to enable companies that manage to reduce their GHG emissions

to sell their excess allowances to companies that are not reaching their emissions objectives Failure to meet the emissions caps

is subject to significant monetary penalties For the years 2008 through 2012 the European Commission significantly reduced

the overall availability of allowances

In 2008 Australia issued guidance outlining the components and rationale for its proposed carbon pollution reduction scheme

as well as associated timing The plan calls for cap and trade model with medium-term target range of between five percent

to 15 percent reduction in GHG by 2020 The reduction scheme aims to provide some assistance to emissions-intensive trade-

exposed companies based on the amount and intensity of its direct and indirect GHG emissions Compliance under Australias

reduction scheme was expected to begin in 2010 but legislation seeking to implement reduction scheme was rejected by the

Australian Senate in August 2009

Any laws or regulations that may be adopted to restrict or reduce emissions of GHGs could cause an increase to our raw

material costs could require us to incur increased operating costs and could have an adverse effect on demand for our

products

Beazer East and Beazer Limited may not continue to meet their obligations to indemnify us

Under the terms of the asset purchase agreement between us and Koppers Company Inc now known as Beazer East Inc

upon the formation of KI in 1988 subject to certain limitations Beazer East and Beazer Limited assumed the
liability

for and

indemnified us against among other things certain clean-up liabilities for contamination occurring prior to the purchase date at
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the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act and economic sanction programs administered by the U.S Treasury Departments Office of

Foreign Assets Control Violations of these laws and regulations may result in civil or criminal penalties including fines

In addition as global business we are also exposed to market risks relating to fluctuations in interest rates and foreign

currency exchange rates Our international revenues could be reduced by currency fluctuations or devaluations Changes in

currency exchange rates could lower our reported revenues and could require us to reduce our prices to remain competitive in

foreign markets which could also reduce our profitability We have not historically hedged our financial statement exposure

and as result we could incur unanticipated losses We are also subject to potentially increasing transportation and shipping

costs associated with international operations Furthermore we are also exposed to risks associated with changes in the laws

and policies governing foreign investments in countries where we have operations as well as to lesser extent changes in U.S

laws and regulations relating to foreign trade and investment

Our strategy to selectively pursue complementary acquisitions may present unforeseen integration obstacles or costs

Our business strategy includes the potential acquisition of businesses and entering into joint ventures and other business

combinations that we expect would complement and expand our existing products and the markets where we sell our

products We may not be able to successfully identify suitable acquisition or joint venture opportunities or complete any

particular acquisition combination joint venture or other transaction on acceptable terms We cannot predict the timing and

success of our efforts to acquire any particular business and integrate the acquired business into our existing operations Also

efforts to acquire other businesses or the implementation of other elements of this business strategy may divert managerial

resources away from our business operations In addition our ability to engage in strategic acquisitions may depend on our

ability to raise substantial capital and we may not be able to raise the funds necessary to implement our acquisition strategy on

terms satisfactory to us if at all Our failure to identify suitable acquisition or joint venture opportunities may restrict our ability

to grow our business In addition we may not be able to successfully integrate businesses that we acquire in the future which

could lead to increased operating costs failure to realize anticipated operating synergies or both

Litigation against us could be costly and time-consuming to defend and due to the nature of our business and

products we may be liable for damages arising out of our acts or omissions which may have material adverse

affect on us

We produce chemicals that require appropriate procedures and care to be used in handling them or using them to manufacture

other products As result of the nature of some of the products we use and produce we may face product liability toxic tort

and other claims relating to incidents involving the handling storage and use of and exposure to our products

For example we are defendant in significant number of lawsuits in which the plaintiffs claim they have suffered variety of

illnesses including cancer and/or property damage as result of exposure to coal tar pitch benzene wood treatment

chemicals and other chemicals including certain cases in state and federal court relating to our Grenada Mississippi and

Somerville Texas facilities further description of the material claims against us is included in Note 19 of the consolidated

financial statements

We are indemnified for certain product liability exposures under the Indemnity with Beazer East related to products sold prior to

the closing of the acquisition of assets from Beazer East Beazer East and Beazer Limited may not continue to meet their

obligations under the Indemnity In addition Beazer East could choose to challenge its obligations under the Indemnity or our

satisfaction of the conditions to indemnification imposed on us thereunder

If for any reason including disputed coverage or financial incapability one or more of such parties fail to perform their

obligations and we are held liable for or otherwise required to pay all or part of such liabilities without reimbursement the

imposition of such liabilities on us could have material adverse effect on our business financial condition cash flows and

results of operations Furthermore we could be required to record contingent liability on our balance sheet with respect to

such matters which could result in us having significant negative net worth

In addition to the above we are regularly subject to legal proceedings and claims that arise in the ordinary course of business

such as workers compensation claims governmental investigations employment disputes and customer and supplier disputes

arising out of the conduct of our business Litigation could result in substantial costs and may divert managements attention

and resources away from the day-to-day operation of our business
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Some specific factors that may have significant effect on our common stock market price include the following

actual or anticipated fluctuations in our operating results or future prospects

the publics reaction to our press releases our other public announcements and our filings with the Securities and Exchange

Commission or the SEC

strategic actions by us or our competitors such as acquisitions or restructurings

new laws or regulations or new interpretations of existing laws or regulations applicable to our business

changes in accounting standards policies guidance interpretations or principles

adverse conditions in the financial markets or general economic conditions including those resulting from war incidents of

terrorism and responses to such events

sales of common stock by us members of our management team or significant shareholder and

changes in stock market analyst recommendations or earnings estimates regarding our common stock other comparable

companies or the aluminum or railroad industry generally

Prior to the initial public offering which closed in February 2006 there was no public market for our common stock We cannot

predict the extent to which investor interest in our company will continue to support an active trading market on the New York

Stock Exchange the NYSE or otherwise or how liquid that market will continue to be If there does not continue to be an

active trading market for our common stock you may have difficulty selling any of our common stock that you buy

Future sales or the perception of future sales of substantial amount of our common stock may depress the price of

the shares of our common stock

Future sales or the perception or the availability for sale in the public market of substantial amounts of our common stock

could adversely affect the prevailing market price of our common stock and could impair our ability to raise capital through

future sales of equity securities at time and price that we deem appropriate

We may issue shares of our common stock or other securities from time to time as consideration for future acquisitions and

investments We may also issue shares of our common stock or other securities in connection with employee stock

compensation programs and board of directors compensation In addition we may issue shares of our common stock or other

securities in public or private offerings as part of our efforts to raise additional capital In the event any such acquisition

investment issuance under stock compensation programs or offering is significant the number of shares of our common stock

or the number or aggregate principal amount as the case may be of other securities that we may issue may in turn be

significant We may also grant registration rights covering those shares or other securities in connection with any such

acquisitions and investments Any additional capital raised through the sale of our equity securities may dilute your percentage

ownership in us

You may not receive dividends because our board of directors could in its discretion depart from or change our

dividend policy at any time because of restrictions in our debt agreements or because of restrictions imposed by

Pennsylvania law

We are not required to pay dividends and our shareholders are not guaranteed and do not have contractual rights to receive

dividends Our board of directors may decide at any time in its discretion to decrease the amount of dividends otherwise

change or revoke the dividend policy or discontinue entirely the payment of dividends Our board of directors could depart from

or change our dividend policy for example if it were to determine that we had insufficient cash to take advantage of other

opportunities with attractive rates of return or if we failed to reach sufficient level of profitability In addition if we do not pay

dividends for whatever reason your shares of our common stock could become less liquid and the market price of our

common stock could decline

The ability of Koppers Inc and its subsidiaries to pay dividends or make other payments or distributions to us will depend on our

operating results and may be restricted by among other things the covenants in Koppers Inc.s revolving credit facility Our

ability to pay dividends is also limited by the indentures governing Koppers Inc.s outstanding notes as well as Pennsylvania law

and may in the future be limited by the covenants of any future outstanding indebtedness we or our subsidiaries incur If

dividend is paid in violation of Pennsylvania law each director approving the dividend could be liable to the corporation if the
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limit our flexibility in planning for or reacting to changes in our business and the markets in which we compete and

place us at competitive disadvantage compared to our competitors that have less debt

In addition the indentures governing the Senior Notes and Koppers Inc.s revolving credit facility contain financial and other

restrictive covenants that will limit our ability to engage in activities that may be in our long-term best interests Our failure to

comply with those covenants could result in an event of default which if not cured or waived could result in the acceleration of

the repayment of all of our debts

Despite current indebtedness levels we may still be able to incur substantially more debt This could further

exacerbate the risks associated with our substantial leverage

We may be able to incur substantial additional indebtedness in the future The terms of the Senior Notes indenture and Koppers

Inc.s revolving credit facility do not fully prohibit us from doing so Koppers Inc.s $300.0 million revolving credit facility permits

additional borrowing and all of those borrowings would rank senior to the Senior Notes and the guarantees to the extent of the

collateral securing such facility In addition the indenture relating to the Senior Notes will permit us to incur all of those

borrowings under Koppers Inc.s revolving credit facility
and substantial additional indebtedness including additional secured

indebtedness If new debt is added to our and our subsidiaries current debt levels the related risks that we and they now face

could intensify

To service our indebtedness we will require significant amount of cash Our ability to generate cash depends on

many factors beyond our control

Our
ability

to make payments on and to refinance our indebtedness including the Senior Notes and to fund planned capital

expenditures and research and development efforts wif depend on our ability to generate cash in the future Although there

can be no assurances we believe that the cash provided by our operations will be sufficient to provide for our cash

requirements for the foreseeable future However our ability to satisfy our obligations will depend on our future operating

performance and financial results which will be sublect in part to factors beyond our control including interest rates and

general economic financial and business conditions We cannot assure you however that our business will generate sufficient

cash flow from operations or that future borrowings will be available to us in an amount sufficient to enable us to pay our

indebtedness including the Senior Notes or to fund our other liquidity needs If we are unable to generate sufficient cash flow

to service our debt we may be required to

refinance all or portion of our debt including the Senior Notes

obtain additional financing

sell some of our assets or operations

reduce or delay capital expenditures and acquisitions or

revise or delay our strategic plans

If we are required to take any of these actions it could have material adverse affect on our business financial condition and

results of operations In addition we cannot assure you that we would be able to take any of these actions that these actions

would enable us to continue to satisfy our capital requirements or that these actions would be permitted under the terms of our

various debt instruments

The covenants in Koppers Inc.s revolving credit facility impose restrictions that may limit our ability to take certain

actions Our failure to comply with these covenants could result in the acceleration of our outstanding indebtedness

Koppers Inc.s revolving credit facility
contains minimum fixed charge coverage and maxunum leverage ratios Additionally the

facility includes covenants limiting liens mergers asset sales dividends and the incurrence of debt Our
ability

to borrow under

Koppers Inc.s revolving credit facility will depend upon satisfaction of these covenants Events beyond our control can affect

our ability
to meet those covenants

If we are unable to meet the terms of our financial covenants or if we break any of these covenants default could occur

default if not waived would entitle our lenders to declare all amounts borrowed under it immediately due and payable which

could also cause the acceleration of obligations under certain other agreements In the event of acceleration of our outstanding
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any assets available to satisfy the obligations under its guarantee As of December 31 2009 the non-guarantor subsidiaries had

approximately $85.4 million of liabilities including trade payables but excluding intercompany indebtedness

Our subsidiaries that do not guarantee the Senior Notes accounted for approximately $397 million or 35 percent of our net

sales and approximately $47 million or 50 percent of our operating profit for the year ended December 31 2009 and

approximately $274 million or 42 percent of our total assets as of December 31 2009 Amounts are presented after giving

effect to intercompany eliminations

Federal or state laws allow courts under specific circumstances to void debts including guarantees and could

require holders of Senior Notes to return payments received from guarantors

The Senior Notes are guaranteed by Koppers Holdings and the wholly-owned domestic restricted subsidiaries of Koppers Inc If

bankruptcy proceeding or lawsuit were to be initiated by unpaid creditors the Senior Notes and the guarantees of the Senior

Notes could come under review for federal or state fraudulent transfer violations Under federal bankruptcy law and comparable

provisions of state fraudulent transfer laws obligations under the Senior Notes or guarantee of the Senior Notes could be

voided or claims in respect of the Senior Notes or guarantee of the Senior Notes could be subordinated to all other debts of

the debtor or that guarantor if among other things the debtor or the guarantor at the time it incurred the debt evidenced by

such Senior Notes or guarantee

received less than reasonably equivalent value or fair consideration for the incurrence of such debt or guarantee and

one of the following applies

it was insolvent or rendered insolvent by reason of such incurrence

it was engaged in business or transaction for which its remaining assets constituted unreasonably small capital or

it intended to incur or believed that it would incur debts beyond its ability to pay such debts as they mature

In addition any payment by the debtor or guarantor under the Senior Notes or guarantee of the Senior Notes could be voided

and required to be returned to the debtor or guarantor as the case may be or deposited in fund for the benefit of the

creditors of the debtor or guarantor

The measure of insolvency for purposes of these fraudulent transfer laws will vary depending upon the law applied in any

proceeding to determine whether fraudulent transfer has occurred Generally however debtor or guarantor would be

considered insolvent if

the sum of its debts including contingent liabilities was greater than the fair saleable value of all its assets

the present fair saleable value of its assets was less than the amount that would be required to pay its probable liability on

its existing debts including contingent liabilities as they become absolute and mature or

it could not pay its debts as they become due

We cannot be sure as to the standards that court would use to determine whether or not guarantor was solvent at the

relevant time or regardless of the standard that the court uses that the issuance of the guarantees of the Senior Notes would

not be voided or subordinated to the guarantors other debt If guarantee was legally challenged it could also be subject to

the claim that because it was incurred for our benefit and only indirectly for the benefit of the guarantor the obligations of

the guarantor were incurred for less than fair consideration court could thus void the obligations under guarantee or

subordinate guarantee to guarantors other debt or take other action detrimental to holders of the Senior Notes

The trading price of the Senior Notes may be volatile

After the registration of the Senior Notes the trading price of the Senior Notes could be subject to significant fluctuations in

response to among other factors changes in our operating results interest rates the market for non-investment grade debt

securities general economic conditions and securities analysts recommendations any regarding our securities

If an active trading market does not develop for the Senior Notes holders may not be able to resell them

Prior to the registration of the Senior Notes there was no public market for the Senior Notes If no active trading market

develops holders may not be able to resell their Senior Notes at their fair market value or at all Future trading prices of the

Senior Notes will depend on many factors including among other things prevailing interest rates our operating results and the

market for similar securities
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ITEM LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are involved in litigation and various proceedings relating to environmental laws and regulations toxic tort product liability

and other matters An adverse outcome for certain of these cases could result in material adverse effect on our business cash

flows and results of operations The information related to legal matters set forth in Note 19 to the Consolidated Financial

Statements of Koppers Holdings Inc is hereby incorporated by reference

ITEM SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

None

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE COMPANY

The following table sets forth the names ages and positions of our and Koppers Inc.s executive officers as of February 2010

Our executive officers hold their positions until the annual meeting of the board of directors or until their respective successors

are elected and qualified

Age Position

63 President and Chief Executive Officer of Koppers Holdings Inc and Koppers Inc and

Director of Koppers Holdings Inc and Koppers Inc

53 Vice President European Operations Koppers Inc

44 Vice President Global Marketing Sales and Development Carbon Materials Chemicals

Koppers Inc

57 Senior Vice President Global Carbon Materials Chemicals Koppers Inc

54 Vice President Human Resources Koppers Inc

49 Vice President Safety and Environmental Affairs Koppers Inc

54 Senior Vice President Administration General Counsel and Secretary Koppers Holdings

Inc and Koppers Inc

55 Vice President and General Manager Railroad Products Services Koppers Inc

Vice President North American Carbon Materials Chemicals Koppers Inc

Vice President Australian Operations Koppers Inc

Vice President and Chief Financial Officer Koppers Holdings Inc and Koppers Inc

Treasurer Koppers Holdings Inc and Koppers Inc

Mr Turner was elected President and Chief Executive Officer in and has been our director since November 2004 He has been

President and Chief Executive Officer and director of Koppers Inc since February 1998

Mr Dietz was elected Vice President European Operations of Koppers Inc in November 2006 effective January 2007 He

joined Koppers in 1995 and has held positions in operations and engineering Most recently he was Operations Manager

Carbon Materials Chemicals of Koppers Inc beginning in March 1999

Mr Evans was elected Vice President Global Marketing Sales and Development Carbon Materials Chemicals of Koppers Inc

in February 2007 From October 2004 through December 2006 Mr Evans was Vice President for Advanced Recycling Systems

industrial equipment manufacturing From July 1998 through September 2004 Mr Evans had been Manager Business

Development Strategic Planning Carbon Materials Chemicals of Koppers Inc

Mr Fitzgerald was elected Senior Vice President Global Carbon Materials Chemicals of Koppers Inc in November 2006

Mr Fitzgerald was elected Vice President and General Manager Carbon Materials Chemicals of Koppers Inc in March 1998

Mr Fitzgerald recently announced his expected retirement from Koppers Inc effective April 30 2010

Mr Howard was elected Vice President Human Resources of Koppers Inc in February 2009 In September 2006 Mr Howard

was appointed Vice President Human Resources Prior to joining Koppers Inc Mr Howard was Vice President Human

Resources and Administration of Foster Company Inc rail and piling supply and precast products since May 2002

Waiter Turner

James Dietz

Donald Evans

Kevin Fitzgerald

Robert Howard

Leslie Hyde

Steven Lacy

Thomas Loadman

Michael Mancione

Mark McCormack

Brian McCurrie

Louann Tronsberg-Deihle

43

50

49

46
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PART II

ITEM MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANTS COMMON EQUITY RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Our common shares are listed and traded on the NYSE under the symbol KOP Prior to our initial public offering in February

2006 there was no established trading market for our common stock

The number of registered holders of Koppers common shares at January 31 2010 was 99

See Note 21 to the consolidated financial statements below for information concerning dividends and high and low market

prices of our common shares during the past two years

Dividend Policy

Our board of directors adopted dividend policy which reflects its judgment that our stockholders would be better served if we
distributed to them as quarterly dividends payable at the discretion of our board of directors portion of the cash generated

by our business in excess of our expected cash needs rather than retaining it or using the cash for other purposes Our expected

cash needs include operating expenses and working capital requirements interest and principal payments on our indebtedness

capital expenditures incremental costs associated with being public company taxes and certain other costs On an annual

basis we expect to pay dividends with cash flow from operations but due to seasonal or other temporary fluctuations in cash

flow we may from time to time use temporary short-term borrowings to pay quarterly dividends

We are not required to pay dividends and our shareholders will not be guaranteed or have contractual or other rights to

receive dividends Our board of directors may decide in its discretion at any time to decrease the amount of dividends

otherwise modify or repeal the dividend policy or discontinue entirely the payment of dividends

Our
ability to pay dividends is restricted by limitations on Koppers Inc.s ability to finance such dividends such limitations being

imposed by Koppers Inc.s credit agreement the indenture governing Koppers Inc.s 7/8% Senior Notes due 2019 the Senior

Notes and by Pennsylvania law

Because we are holding company substantially all of the assets shown on our consolidated balance sheet are held by our

subsidiaries Accordingly our earnings and cash flow and our ability to pay dividends are dependent upon the earnings and

cash flows of our subsidiaries and the distribution or other payment of such earnings to us in the form of dividends Koppers

Inc our only direct subsidiary is party to credit agreement that restricts its ability to pay dividends to Koppers Holdings Inc

Koppers Inc.s credit agreement prohibits it from making dividend payments to us unless such dividend payments are

permitted by the indenture governing Koppers Inc.s Senior Notes and no event of default or potential default has occurred

or is continuing under the credit agreement The indenture governing Koppers Inc.s Senior Notes restricts its ability to finance

our payment of dividends if default has occurred or would result from such financing restricted subsidiary of Koppers

Inc which is not guarantor under the indenture is not able to incur additional indebtedness as defined in the indenture and

the sum of all restricted payments as defined in the indenture have exceeded the permitted amount which we refer to as

the basket at such point in time

The basket is governed by formula based on the sum of beginning amount plus or minus percentage of Koppers Incs

consolidated net income as defined in the indenture plus the net proceeds of Koppers Incs qualified stock issuance or

conversions of debt to qualified stock plus the net proceeds from the sale of or reduction in an investment as defined in the

indenture or the value of the assets of an unrestricted subsidiary which is designated restricted subsidiary At December 31
2009 the basket totaled $139.3 million Notwithstanding such restrictions the indenture governing Koppers Inc.s Senior Notes

permits an additional aggregate amount of $20.0 million each fiscal year to finance dividends on the capital stock of Koppers

Holdings whether or not there is any basket availability provided that at the time of such payment no default in the indenture

has occurred or would result from financing the dividends

Our ability to pay dividends is also restricted by Pennsylvania law Under Pennsylvania law corporation has the power subject

to restrictions in its bylaws to pay dividends or make other distributions to its shareholders unless after giving effect thereto

the corporation would not be able to pay its debts as they become due in the usual course of business or the

corporations assets would be less than the sum of its total liabilities plus unless otherwise provided in its articles the amount
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ITEM SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table contains our selected historical consolidated financial data for the five years ended December 31 2009 The
selected historical consolidated financial data for each of the five years ended December 31 2009 2008 2007 2006 and 2005
have been derived from our audited consolidated financial statements This selected financial data should be read in conjunction
with Koppers Consolidated Financial Statements and related notes included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K as
well as Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Year ended December31

2009 2008 2Q07 2006 2005

Sic/tars is rn5licrii except share and per share amounts

Statement of Operations Data

Net sales

$1124.4 $1364.8 $1255.6 $1044.2 $913.4
Depreciation and amortization

24.8 30.0 29 29 28.4

Operating profit
94.9 130.2 125.1 790 69.0

Interest expense
36.3 42.6 45.9 46.9 51.7

Loss gain on extinguishment of debt
22.4 1.2 14.4

Income from continuing operations 21.7 48.4 50.5 9.0 10.6
Income from discontinued operationsOxN 4.4 9.3 8.7 1.4

Gain on sale of Koppers Arch2
6.7

Gain loss on sale of MonessenD
0.3 85.9

Net income4
21.4 138.7 66.5 17.7 12.0

Net income attributable to Kopperst4 18.8 1380 63.3 152 9.9

Net income applicable to Koppers common shares
18.8 138.0 63.3 152 19

Earnings Loss Per Common Share Data56
Basic

continuing operations 0.93 2.31 2.30 0.39 7.28
Diluted

continuing operations 0.92 2.30 29 36 7.28
Weighted average common shares outstanding in thousands 161

Basic

20446 20651 20768 19190 2907
Diluted

20561 20767 20874 20104 2907
Balance Sheet Data

Cash and cash equivalents/si
58.4 63.1 14.4 21.3 26.1

Total assets
644.4 661.1 669.3 6494 551.8

Total debt
335.3 374.9 440.2 475.9 517.2

Other Data

Capital expenditures8
18.0 36.7 23.2 27.5 21.1

Cash dividends declared per common share
0.88 0.88 0.68 1.30 3.19

Cash dividends declared per preferred share
12.68

Includes loss gaits on the extinguishment of Senior Discount Notes and Senior Secured Notes in 2009 poion of the Senior Secured Notes in 2008 and
port/ott of the Senior Discount Notes in 2006

In July 2007 we sold our 51 percent interest in Koppers Arch Investments Limited and its subsidianes Koppers Arch Koppers Archs results of operationshave been classified as discontinued operation for
al/periods presented

Iii October 2008 we sold our 95 percent interest in Koppers Monessen PaNners LP Monessen Monessen results of
operations have been classified as

disronrinued operation for
al/periods presented

In connertirm with our initial public offering in Februa 2006 costs totaling $17.4 million were incurred for related call premium on the Senior Secured Notes
$10 mi/lioni the write-off of deferred

financing costs $3.2 million the termination of the Saratoga Partners llf L.P adviso senrices contract $3.0 million
arid payinient of bond consent fees $1 million

Prior to the con version of the senior convertible preferred stock into shares of common stock in connection with our initial
pub/ic offering in February 2006

earnings per share were calculated in accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force No 03-6 Participating Securities and the Two-Class Method under FASB
Stateroent No 128 after giving effect to the 9799-for-one stock

split
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ITEM MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS

OF OPERATIONS

Overview

We are leading integrated global provider of carbon compounds and commercial wood treatment products and services Our

products are used in variety of niche applications in diverse range of end-markets including the aluminum railroad

specialty chemical utility rubber concrete and steel industries We serve our customers through comprehensive global

manufacturing and distribution network with manufacturing facilities located in the United States Australia China the United

Kingdom and Denmark

We operate two principal businesses Carbon Materials Chemicals CMC and Railroad Utility Products RUP
Through our CMC business we process coal tar into variety of products including carbon pitch creosote naphthalene and

phthalic anhydride which are intermediate materials necessary in the production of aluminum the pressure treatment of wood

the production of high-strength concrete and the production of plasticizers and specialty chemicals respectively Through our

RUP business we believe that we are the largest supplier of railroad crossties to the North American railroads Our other

commercial wood treatment products include the provision of utility poles to the electric and telephone utility industries

Our CMC business has entered into number of strategic transactions during the last three years to expand and focus on its

core business related to coal tar distillation and derived products In December 2009 we announced that we had entered into

letter of intent to acquire Cindu Chemicals By coal tar distillation company located in the Netherlands The acquisition may

be completed in the first quarter of 2010 For the year ended December 31 2008 the last date such information is publicly

available Cindus revenues were approximately $70 million

In May 2009 Tangshan Koppers Kailuan Carbon Chemical Company Limited TKK commenced the operation of new tar

distillation facility located in China in the Hebei Province near the iingtang Port with distillation capacity of 300000 metric

tons We hold 30 percent investment in TKK Finally in November 2008 we completed project to expand the capacity of

our existing 60-percent owned tar distillation plant in Tangshan China from 50000 metric tons to 200000 metric tons

On October 2008 we sold our 95 percent interest in Koppers Monessen Partners LP Monessen to ArcelorMittal S.A for

cash of $160.0 million plus working capital of $10.0 million Net cash proceeds after deduction for the limited partner interest

taxes and transaction costs were approximately $100.0 million Monessen is metallurgical furnace coke facility Effective as of

the end of the second quarter of 2008 Monessen was classified as discontinued operation in the Companys statement of

operations

In July 2007 we sold our 51 percent interest in Koppers Arch Investments Pty Limited and its subsidiaries Koppers Arch to

Arch Chemicals Inc for net cash proceeds of $14.3 million and recognized gain from the sale net of tax of $6.7 million

Effective as of this date Koppers Arch was classified as discontinued operation in our statement of operations Koppers Arch

is manufacturer of timber preservation chemicals

Monessen and Koppers Arch were part of our Carbon Materials Chemicals business segment

Outlook

Trend Overview

Our businesses and results of operations are impacted by various competitive and other factors including the impact of global

economic conditions on demand for our products both in the United States and overseas raw materials pricing and

availability in particular the amount and quality of coal tar available in global markets which could be negatively impacted by

reductions in steel production iii volatility in oil prices which impacts selling prices and margins for certain of our products

including carbon black feedstock and phthalic anhydride iv competitive conditions in global carbon pitch markets low

margins in the utility pole business and vi changes in foreign exchange rates

Our businesses and results of operations have been impacted by the global recession starting in late 2008 and continuing

through 2009 We expect that although the global economy and our key end markets appear to have stabilized we will

continue to experience these negative trends in 2010 as improvement in our key end markets will emerge slowly over time
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Seasonality and Effects of Weather on Operations

Our quarterly operating results fluctuate due to variety of factors that are outside of our control including inclement weather

conditions which in the past have affected operating results Operations at several facilities have been halted for short periods

of time during the winter months Moreover demand for some of our products declines during periods of inclement weather

As result of the foregoing we anticipate that we may experience material fluctuations in quarterly operating results

Historically our operating results have been significantly lower in the fourth and first calendar quarters as compared to the

second and third calendar quarters We expect this seasonality trend to continue in future periods

Due to the concentration of our North American operating facilities in the eastern and mid-western portions of the United

States we have been negatively impacted by heavy snowstorm activity in January and February 2010 This has resulted in higher

operating and logistics costs as well as lower production and shipments of our products at these locations We expect that this

will have negative impact our results for the first quarter of 2010

Results of Operations Comparison of Years Ended December 31 2009 and December 31 2008

Consolidated Results

Net sales for the years ended December 31 2009 and 2008 are summarized by segment in the following table

Year

Ended

December31
_____________________ Net

2009 2008 change

Dollars in millions

Carbon Materials Chemicals 655.2 892.0 -27%

Railroad Utility Products 469.2 472.8 -1%

$1124.4 $1364.8 -18%

CMC net sales decreased by $236.8 million or 27 percent due to the following changes in volume pricing and foreign

exchange

Foreign Net

Price Volume Exchange Change

Carbon Materialsla 2% -11% -1% -10%

Distillatesb -2% -3% -5%

Coal Tar ChemicaIs -3% -2%

Otherdl -1 -4% -2% -7%

Total CMC -4% -20% -3% -27%

Includes carbon pitch and refined tar

Includes creosote and carbon black feedstock

Includes naphthalene and ph thaI/c anhydride

Includes carbon black petroleum pitch benzole freight
and other products

Carbon materials pricing for carbon pitch increased three percent in the U.S and Australia as customer prices were increased in

response to higher raw material costs Offsetting this increase were lower sales volumes of carbon pitch in the U.S of nine

percent and Europe of two percent The volume decreases are due to reduced worldwide demand for aluminum products and

the related idling of number of aluminum smelters to reduce supply

Distillate pricing for carbon black feedstock decreased two percent in Europe due to lower average worldwide oil prices as

compared to the prior year The decrease in distillate sales volume is due primarily to lower creosote sales in the U.S totaling

two percent

For coal tar chemicals decreases in phthalic anhydride prices in the U.S of two percent and naphthalene prices of one percent

in Europe were experienced Lower volumes of phthalic anhydride of one percent resulted from weakness in the U.S housing

and auto industries With respect to other products benzole and carbon black volumes decreased one percent each as

compared to the prior year
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Segment Results

Segment operating profit for the years ended December 31 2009 and 2008 is summarized by segment in the following

table

Dollars in rnilhoris

Operating profit

Carbon Materials Chemicals

Railroad Utility Products

Year Ended

December 31

2009 2008 Change

Operating profit as percentage of net sales

Carbon Materials Chemicals

Railroad Utility Products

8.9% 12.1% -3.2%

81% 5.1% 3.0%

8.4% 9.5% -1.1%

Carbon Materials Chemicals net sales and operating profit by geographic region for the years ended December 31

2009 and 2008 is summarized in the following table

Twelve months ended

December31

2009 2008 change

Dollars in millions

$655.2 $892.0

Operating profit

North America 18.3 56.4

Europe 19.8 25.8

Australia 14.5 26.1

China 5.9 0.1

58.5 $108.2

-68%

-44%

n/a

-46%

North American CMC sales decreased by $128.2 million due primarily to lower volumes for carbon pitch creosote and

phthalc anhydride totaling $111.4 million in addition to lower freight of $11.1 million Higher volumes of refined tar and

petroleum pitch of $11.1 million partially offset these decreases Operating profit as percentage of net sales decreased to

seven percent from 14 percent for the prior period reflecting the impact of significantly lower sales volumes coupled with lower

pricing for phthalic anhydride

European CMC sales decreased by $80.0 million due primarily to lower prices for carbon black feedstock benzole and

naphthalene totaling $29.9 million and lower volumes for carbon pitch benzole and creosote totaling $24.0 million In

addition currency exchange rate changes resulted in reduction of sales totaling $21.1 million Operating profit as

percentage of net sales increased to 11 percent from ten percent from the prior period

Corporate

$58.5 $108.2 -46%

38.2 24.3 57%

1.8 2.3 -22%

$94.9 $130.2 -27%

Net sales

North America

Europe

Australia

China

Intrasegment

$270.4 $398.6

179.4 259.4

145.7 167.4

78.6 77.7

18.9 11.1

-32

-31%

-13%

1%
70%

-27%
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For coal tar chemicals increases in phthalic anhydride prices of one percent were partially offset by lower naphthalene prices in

Europe The decrease in coal tar chemicals volumes is due primarily to lower phthalic anhydride volumes of one percent With

respect to other products carbon black volumes freight specialty chemicals and other carbon products increased five percent

as compared to the prior year and were partially offset by lower commercial roofing sales Carbon black prices experienced an

increase of one percent as compared to the prior year

RUP net sales decreased by $6.7 million or one percent due to the following changes in volume and pricing

Net

Price Volume Change

Railroad Crosstieslal
2% -3% -1

TSO Crosstiesb
2% -1%

Distribution Poles
1% -1

Other11
3% -4% -1

Total RUP 8% -9% -1%

Includes treated and untreated railroad crossties

Includes sales from treatment services only TSOT
Includes transmission poles pilings creosote freight and other treated and untreated lumber products

Sales were negatively impacted by volume decreases of untreated railroad crossties totaling four percent for the year ended

December 31 2008 due to capital purchasing reductions by the Class railroads and reduced raw material availability due to

weather and weak timber market Treated railroad crossties pricing increased by one percent for the year ended

December 31 2008 as raw material price increases were passed on to customers The price increase in other products is due

primarily to higher creosote prices and transmission pole prices totaling two percent The lower volumes in other products is due

primarily to lower sales of untreated lumber products

Cost of sales as percentage of net sales was 84 percent for the year ended December 31 2008 as compared to 82 percent

for the year ended December 31 2007 Overall cost of sales increased by $111.1 million when compared to the prior year

period due primarily to higher raw material costs

Depreciation and amortization for the year
ended December 31 2008 was $0.5 million higher when compared to the prior

year period and included an impairment charge of $3.7 million related to our glycerine refining plant in the United Kingdom

Selling general and administrative expenses for the year ended December 31 2008 were $7.5 million lower when

compared to the prior year period due primarily to due diligence costs of $6.8 million incurred in 2007 related to potential

acquisition which was not consummated

Interest expense for the year ended December 31 2008 was $3.3 million lower when compared to the prior year period due

primarily to lower average borrowings on revolving credit facilities and term debt Lower average borrowings resulted from debt

reductions funded by cash flows from operations and the net proceeds from the sale of Monessen in October 2008

Income taxes for the year
ended December 31 2008 were $12.6 million higher when compared to the prior year period due

primarily to the increase in pretax income of $10.5 million and estimated taxes on unremitted European earnings for 2008 For

the year ended December 31 2007 all European earnings were considered to be permanently reinvested and did not attract

taxation Our effective income tax rate for the year ended December 31 2008 was 46.2 percent as compared to the prior

year period of 36.5 percent The increase in the effective tax rate is due primarily to the U.S taxation of European earnings in

2008

Gain on sale of Monessen for the year ended December 31 2008 represents the gain net of tax expense from the sale of

our 95 percent interest in Monessen to ArcelorMittal S.A on October 2008 Effective as of this date Monessen was classified

as discontinued operation in our statement of operations
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Australian CMC sales increased by $34.8 milhon due primarily to higher volumes for carbon pitch and carbon black which

totaled $18.2 million The increase in volume for carbon black is result of the plant expansion project at the Companys

carbon black plant becoming fully operational Increases in carbon black prices contributed higher sales of $11.2 million

Operating profit as percentage of net sales was 15.6 percent for the as compared to 14.2 percent for the prior period

Chinese CMC sales increased by $7.5 million due primarily to higher volumes of carbon pitch and other products principally

distillates totaling $10.9 million partially offset by lower carbon pitch volumes of $5.5 million Currency exchange rate changes

contributed $6.3 million to increased sales Operating profit as percentage of net sales was breakeven as compared to 9.5

percent for the prior period The decrease in operating margin is due primarily to inventory lower of cost of market writedowns

and investment in sales and administrative functions in China

Railroad Utility Products operating profit for the twelve months ended December 31 2008 decreased by $18.8 million as

compared to the prior period primarily as result of lower sales of untreated railroad crossties and TSO crossties and lower

operating profit margins Operating profit as percentage of net sales decreased to 5.1 percent from 8.9 percent between

periods due to lower production and procurement levels for railroad crossties and the increased operating costs due to boiler

outage at one of the Companys wood treatment plants and the unplanned outage of an electricity cogeneration unit at

another of the Companys wood treatment plants

Cash Flow

Net cash provided by operating activities was $1 12.3 million for the year ended December 31 2009 as compared to net

cash provided by operating activities of $51.9 million for the year ended December 31 2008 Net cash provided by operating

activities for 2008 includes income taxes paid in connection with the Monessen transaction of approximately $50 million

Excluding this amount net cash flow from operating activities increased by approximately $10 million between periods due to

reductions in inventories and accounts receivable

Net cash provided by operating activities was $51.9 million for the year ended December 31 2008 as compared to net cash

provided by operating activities of $66.1 million for the year ended December 31 2007 Net cash provided by operating

activities for 2008 includes income taxes paid in connection with the Monessen transaction of approximately $50 million

Excluding this amount net cash flow from operating activities increased by approximately $36 million between periods due to

improved working capital and lower interest payments

Net cash used in investing activities was $20.8 million for the year ended December 31 2009 as compared to net cash

provided by investing activities of $120.7 million for the year ended December 31 2008 Net cash proceeds from divestitures

and asset sales in 2008 primarily represent the net cash proceeds from the sale of Monessen Decreased capital spending in

2009 is primarily related to our plant expansion in China and increased environmental improvement spending at our U.S wood

treating plants during 2008 Acquisition expenditures in 2009 primarily represent an asset acquisition in our US RUP business

and capital contributions to Tangshan Koppers Kailuan Carbon Chemical Company Limited TKK our 30 percent-owned coal

tar distillation joint venture in China Acquisition expenditures in 2008 primarily related to capital contributions to TKK

Net cash provided by investing activities was $120.7 million for the year ended December 31 2008 as compared to net cash

used in investing activities of $16.5 million for the year ended December 31 2007 Net cash proceeds from divestitures and

asset sales primarily represent the net cash proceeds from the sale of Monessen Increased capital spending in 2008 primarily

related to our plant expansion in China and increased environmental improvement spending at our U.S wood treating plants

Net cash used in financing activities was $96.9 million for the year ended December 31 2009 as compared to net cash used

in financing activities of $123.1 million for the year ended December 31 2008 Net repayments of debt totaled $70.8 million in

the year ended December 31 2009 as result of refinancing the Senior Discount Notes and the Senior Secured Notes with

borrowings under the revolving credit agreement cash and the issuance of $300.0 million principal value Senior Notes

Net cash used in financing activities was $123.1 million for the year ended December 31 2008 as compared to net cash used in

financing activities of $58.6 million for the year ended December 31 2007 Net repayments of debt totaled $83.3 million in the

year ended December 31 2008 as result of higher cash provided from the sale of Monessen and from operating activities

after adjustment for the cash taxes paid on Monessen Repurchases of common stock under the Companys common stock

repurchase program totaled $20.7 million in 2008
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The following table summarizes our estimated liquidity as of December 31 2009 dollars in millions

Cash and cash equivalents 58.4

Amount available under revolving credit
facility 64.7

Amount available under other credit facilities 7.1

Total estimated liquidity $230.2

Our estimated liquidity was $352.7 million at December 31 2008 The decrease in estimated liquidity from that date is due

primarily to decrease in availability under the revolving credit facility due to an increase in borrowing of $40.0 million under

the revolving credit facility and other covenant restrictions

As of December 31 2009 we had $325.0 million aggregate amount of common stock debt securities preferred stock

depositary shares and warrants or combination of these securities available to be issued under our registration statement on

Form S-3 filed in 2009

Our need for cash in the next twelve months relates primarily to contractual obligations which include debt service purchase

commitments and operating leases as well as for working capital capital maintenance programs and mandatory defined

benefit plan funding We may also use cash to pursue potential strategic acquisitions Capital expenditures in 2010 excluding

acquisitions are expected to total approximately $26 million We believe that our cash flow from operations and available

borrowings under the revolving credit facility will be sufficient to fund our anticipated liquidity requirements for at least the next

twelve months In the event that the foregoing sources are not sufficient to fund our expenditures and service our

indebtedness we would be required to raise additional funds

Cash Flows from Discontinued Operations

The cash flows related to Monessen and Koppers Arch for the two years ended December 31 2008 have not been restated in

the consolidated statement of cash flows Excluding cash proceeds from the sales of Monessen and Koppers Arch the net cash

inflows outflows of discontinued operations totaled $0.7 million and $1 .9 million for the years ended December 31 2008

and 2007 respectively

Schedule of Certain Contractual Obligations

The following table details our projected payments for our significant contractual obligations as of December 31 2009 The

table is based upon available information and certain assumptions we believe to be reasonable

Payments Due by Period

Later years
Total 20W 201t-20t2 20t3-20t4

in millions

Long-term debt including accretion 340.3 0.2 0.1 40.0 $300.0

Interest on debt 246.9 25.8 51.7 51.3 118.1

Operating leases 1.0 38.8 48.2 5.8 8.2

Purchase commitments11 953.9 296.3 316.6 186.4 154.6

Total contractual cash obligations $1652.1 $361.1 $416.6 $293.5 $580.9

Consists
primarily

of raw materials purchase contracts These are typically not fixed price arrangements the prices are based on the prevailing market prices As

result we generally expect to be able to hedge the purchases with sales at those future prices

Pension and other employee benefit plan funding obligations for defined benefit plans are not included in the table above We

expect defined benefit plan contributions to total approximately $6 million in 2010 Due to the significant decline in asset values

experienced in 2008 and the first quarter of 2009 we estimate that our mandatory funding requirements for our U.S qualified

pension plan our largest defined benefit plan will significantly increase in the following years unless legislative relief is granted

We estimate that mandatory funding for this plan will be approximately $12 million in 2011 and $10 million in 2012 Estimated

funding obligations are determined by asset performance workforce and retiree demographics tax and employment laws and

other actuarial assumptions which may change the annual funding obligations The funded status of our defined benefit plans is

disclosed in Note 16 of the Consolidated Financial Statements
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recognized at the time the service is provided Our recognition of revenue with respect to untreated crossties meets all the

recognition criteria of the Securities and Exchange Commissions Staff Accounting Bulletin Topic 3A3 including transfer of title

and risk of ownership the existence of fixed purchase commitments and delivery schedules established by the customer and the

completion of all performance obligations by us

Accounts Receivable We maintain allowances for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting from the inability of our

customers to make required payments In circumstances where we become aware of specific customers inability to meet its

financial obligations specific reserve for bad debts is recorded against amounts due If the financial conditions of our

customers were to deteriorate resulting in an impairment of their ability to make payments additional allowances may be

required

Inventories In the United States CMC and RUP inventories are valued at the lower of cost utilizing the last-in first-out

LIFO basis or market Inventories outside the United States are valued at the lower of cost utilizing the first-in first-out

basis FIFO or market Market represents replacement cost for raw materials and net realizable value for work in process and

finished goods inventories constituted approximately 63 percent of the FIFO inventory value at December 31 2009 and

2008

Long-LivedAssets Our management periodically evaluates the net realizable value of long-lived assets including property

plant and equipment based on number of factors including operating results projected future cash flows and business plans

We record long-lived assets at the lower of cost or fair value with fair value based on assumptions concerning the amount and

timing of estimated future cash flows Since judgment is involved in determining the fair value of fixed assets there is risk that

the carrying value of our long-lived assets may be overstated

Goodwill Goodwill is not amortized but is assessed for impairment at least on an annual basis In making this assessment

management relies on various factors including operating results estimated future cash flows and business plans There are

inherent uncertainties related to these factors and in our managements judgment in applying them to the analysis of goodwill

impairment Because managements judgment is involved in performing goodwill impairment analyses there is risk that the

carrying value of goodwill is overstated

Goodwill valuations are performed using an average of actual and projected operating results of the relevant reporting units

Changes in economic and operating conditions impacting these assumptions could result in goodwill impairments in future

periods Additionally disruptions to our business such as prolonged recessionary periods or unexpected significant declines in

operating results of the relevant reporting units could result in charges for goodwill and other asset impairments in future

periods

Deferred Tax Assets At December 31 2009 our balance sheet included $61 .4 million of deferred tax assets net of $1 .2

million valuation allowance We have determined that this valuation allowance is required for our deferred tax assets based on

future earnings projections To the extent that we encounter unexpected difficulties in market conditions adverse changes in

regulations affecting our businesses and operations adverse outcomes in legal and environmental matters or any other

unfavorable conditions the projections for future taxable income may be overstated and we may be required to record an

increase in the valuation allowance related to these deferred tax assets which could have material adverse effect on income in

the future

Accrued Insurance We are insured for property casualty and workers compensation insurance up to various stop loss

amounts after meeting required retention levels Losses are accrued based upon estimates of the liability for the related

retentions for claims incurred using certain actuarial assumptions followed in the insurance industry and based on our

experience In the event we incur significant number of losses beyond the coverage retention limits additional expense

beyond the actuarial projections would be required

Asset Retirement Obligations We measure asset retirement obligations based upon the applicable accounting guidance

using certain assumptions including estimates regarding the recovery of residues in storage tanks In the event that operational

or regulatory issues vary from our estimates we could incur additional significant charges to income and increases in cash

expenditures related to the disposal of those residues

Pension and Postretirement Benefits Accounting for pensions and other postretirement benefits involves estimating the

cost of benefits to be provided far into the future and allocating that cost over the time period each employee works This

calculation requires extensive use of assumptions regarding inflation investment returns mortality medical costs employee

turnover and discount rates In determining the expected return on plan assets assumptions we evaluate long-term actual
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Koppers Holdings Inc

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Koppers Holdings Inc and subsidiaries as of December 31
2009 and 2008 and the related consolidated statements of operations comprehensive income stockholders equity deficit

and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31 2009 Our audits also included the financial

statement schedule listed in the Index at Item 15a These financial statements and schedule are the responsibility of the

Companys management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and schedule based on our

audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States

Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial

statements are free of material misstatement An audit includes examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts

and disclosures in the financial statements An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant

estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation We believe that our audits

provide reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the consolidated

financial position of Koppers Holdings Inc and subsidiaries at December 31 2009 and 2008 and the consolidated results of

their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31 2009 in conformity with

U.S generally accepted accounting principles Also in our opinion the related financial statement schedule when considered in

relation to the basic financial statements taken as whole presents fairly
in all material respects the information set forth

therein

We have also audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States

Koppers Holdings Inc.s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2009 based on criteria established in

Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission

and our report dated February 19 2010 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon

Is ERNST YOUNG LLP

Pittsburgh Pennsylvania

February 19 2010
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KOPPERS HOLDINGS INC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

Year Ended December31

2009 2008 2007

Dollars in millions except
share and

per
share amounts

Net sales

Cost of sales excluding items below

Depreciation and amortization

Selling general and administrative expenses

Operating profit

Other income loss

Interest expense

Loss gain on extinguishment of debt

Income before income taxes

Income taxes

Income from continuing operations

Income from discontinued operations net of tax benefit of $3.0 and $2.8

Gain on sale of Koppers Arch net of tax expense of $4.3

Gain on sale of Monessen net of tax benefit expense of $0.2 and $50.4

Net income

Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests

Net income attributable to Koppers

Earnings loss per common share

Basic

Continuing operations 0.93 2.31 2.30

Discontinued operations 0.01 4.37 0.75

Earnings per basic common share 0.92 6.68 3.05

Diluted

Continuing operations 0.92 2.30 2.29

Discontinued operations 0.01 4.35 0.74

Earnings per diluted common share 0.91 6.65 3.03

Weighted average common shares outstanding in thousands

Basic 20446 20651 20768
Diluted 20561 20767 20874

Dividends declared per common share 0.88 0.88 0.68

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Year Ended December31

2009 2008 2007

Dollars in millions

Net income $21.4 $138.7 $66.5

Changes in other comprehensive income loss

Currency translation adjustment 24.0 28.5 11.1

Unrecognized pension transition asset net of tax of $0 $0 and $0.2 0.2 0.3 0.5

Unrecognized pension prior service cost net of tax of $0.1 and $0.5 0.1 0.1 0.7

Unrecognized pension net gain loss net of tax of $2.5 $1 9.4 and $5.7 1.9 30.5 9.3

Total comprehensive income 47.0 79.3 85.7

Comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling interests 3.5 .3 3.3

Comprehensive income attributable to Koppers $43.5 78.0 $82.4

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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KOPPERS HOLDINGS INC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Year Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007

DoIian in ndi/bn.r

Cash provided by used in operating activtios

Net income 21.4 38.7 66.5

Adjustments to reconcile net cash provided by operating activities

Depreciation and amortization 26.6 31.7 34.7

Loss gain on extinguishment of debt 22.4 1.2

Lossgainon saleof assets 0.6 139.5 11.1

Deferred income taxes 22.9 3.0 3.0

Non-cash interest expense 16.4 17.1 15.6

Equity income of affiliated companies net of dividends received 2.0 0.8 0.3

Change in other liabilities 6.8 6.9

Stock-based compensation
2.5 3.7 1.9

Other 0.6 1.6 0.4

Increase decrease in working capital

Accounts receivable 16.1 18.9 17.9

Inventories 31.5 15.1 28.6

Accounts payable 6.8 6.8 16.2

Accrued liabilities and other working capital 40.7 1.0 8.0

Net cash provided by operating activities 12.3 51.9 66.1

Cash provided by used in investing activities

Capital expenditures 18.0 37.1 24.3

Acquisitions 2.2 2.9 4.1

Net cash proceeds from divestitures and asset sales 0.6 60.7 1.9

Net cash provided by used in investing activities 20.8 120.7 16.5

Cash provided by used in financing activities

Borrowings of revolving credit 190.0 203.7 318.0

Repayments of revolving credit 50.0 225.0 342.0

Borrowings on long-term debt 294.9

Repayments on long-term debt 405.7 62.0 20.8

Issuances of Common Stock 0.6

Repurchases of Common Stock 21.3 0.9

Excess tax benefit from employee stock plans
0.8 1.2

Payment of deferred financing costs 8.1 2.7

Dividends paid 18.0 17.2 14.1

Net cash used in financing activities 96.9 123.1 58.6

Effect of exchange rates on cash 0.7 0.8 2.1

Net increase decrease in cash and cash equivalents 4.7 48.7 6.9

Add Cash of assets held for sale at beginning of year
0.6 2.5

Less Cash of assets held for sale at end of year
0.6

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
63.1 13.8 18.8

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
58.4 63.1 13.8

Supplemental disclosure of cash flows information

Cash paid during the year for

Interest 19.8 24.2 29.1

Income taxes 26.1 74.0 25.0

Noncash investing and financing activities

Capital leases
0.5

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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KOPPERS HOLDINGS INC

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Description of Business

Parent company of Koppers Inc In these financial statements unless otherwise indicated or the context requires otherwise

when the terms Koppers the Company we our or us are used they mean Koppers Inc formerly known as

Koppers Industries Inc and its subsidiaries on consolidated basis for periods up until November 18 2004 and Koppers

Holdings Inc Koppers Holdings and its subsidiaries on consolidated basis for periods from and including November 18

2004 when Koppers Holdings became the parent of Koppers Inc The use of these terms is not intended to imply that Koppers

Holdings and Koppers Inc are not separate and distinct legal entities Koppers Holdings has no direct operations and no

significant assets other than the stock of Koppers Inc as of December 31 2009 It depends on the dividends from the earnings

of Koppers Inc and its subsidiaries to generate the funds necessary to meet its financial obligations The terms of Koppers Inc.s

revolving credit
facility prohibit Koppers Inc from paying dividends and otherwise transferring assets except for certain limited

dividends Further the terms of the indenture governing Koppers Inc.s Senior Notes significantly restrict Koppers Inc from

paying dividends and otherwise transferring assets to Koppers Holdings

Business description The Company is global integrated producer of carbon compounds and treated and untreated wood

products and services for use in variety of markets including the aluminum railroad specialty chemical utility rubber

concrete and steel industries The Companys business is operated through two business segments Carbon Materials

Chemicals and Railroad Utility Products

The Companys Carbon Materials Chemicals segment is primarily supplier of carbon pitch naphthalene phthalic anhydride

creosote carbon black feedstock and carbon black Carbon pitch is critical raw material used in the production of aluminum

and for the production of steel in electric arc furnaces Naphthalene is used for the production of phthalic anhydride and as

surfactant in the production of concrete Phthalic anhydride is used in the production of plasticizers polyester resins and alkyd

paints Creosote is used in the treatment of wood and carbon black feedstock is used in the production of carbon black Carbon

black is used primarily in the production of rubber tires

The Companys Railroad Utility Products segment sells treated and untreated wood products and services primarily to the

railroad and public utility markets Railroad products include procuring and treating items such as crossties switch ties and

various types of lumber used for railroad bridges and crossings Utility products include transmission and distribution poles and

pilings The segment also produces concrete crossties through joint venture

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of presentation The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and all majority-owned

subsidiaries for which the Company is deemed to exercise control over its operations All significant intercompany transactions

have been eliminated The Companys investments in 20 percent to 50 percent-owned companies in which it has the ability to

exercise significant influence over operating and financial policies are accounted for using the equity method of accounting

Accordingly the Companys share of the earnings of these companies is included in the accompanyng consolidated statement

of operations The Company has evaluated all subsequent events through February 19 2010 the date the financial statements

were issued

Use of estimates Accounting principles generally accepted in the U.S require management to make estimates and judgments

that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingencies on the date of the financial

statements as well as the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period Estimates have been

prepared on the basis of the most current and best available information and actual results could differ materially from these

estimates

Foreign currency translation For consolidated entities outside of the U.S that prepare financial statements in currencies other

than the U.S dollar results of operations and cash flows are translated at average exchange rates during the period and asset

and liabilities are generally translated at end-of-period exchange rates Cumulative translation adjustments are included as
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more often as circumstances require When it is determined that impairment has occurred an appropriate charge to earnings is

recorded The Company performed its annual impairment test in the fourth quarters of 2009 and 2008 and determined that the

estimated fair values substantially exceeded the carrying values of all the reporting units and accordingly there was no

impairment of goodwill

Identifiable intangible assets other than goodwill are recorded at cost Identifiable intangible assets that do not have indefinite

lives are amortized on straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives

Deferred income taxes Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for future tax consequences attributable to differences

between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases The effect on

deferred tax assets and liabilities of change in tax laws is recognized in earnings in the period the new laws are enacted

valuation allowance is recorded to reduce the carrying amounts of deferred tax assets unless it is more likely than not that such

assets will be realized Deferred tax liabilities have not been recognized for the undistributed earnings of certain foreign

subsidiaries because management intends to permanently reinvest such earnings in foreign operations

Insurance The Company is self-insured for property casualty and workers compensation exposures up to various stop-loss

coverage amounts Losses are accrued based upon the Companys estimates of the liability
for the related deductibles of claims

incurred Such estimates utilize actuarial methods based on various assumptions which include but are not limited to the

Companys historical loss experience and projected loss development factors In 2009 and 2008 the Company reversed $1.9

million and $2.0 million respectively of insurance loss reserves as result of favorable loss trends related to self-insured claims

Such reversals increased operating profit in both periods Insurance loss reserves accrued at December 31 2009 and 2008

totaled $12.1 million and $11.9 million respectively

Derivative financial instruments The Company uses forward exchange contracts to hedge exposure to currency exchange rate

changes on transactions and other commitments denominated in foreign currency Contracts are generally written on short-

term basis and are not held for trading or speculative purposes The Company recognizes the fair value of the forward contracts

as an asset or liability
at each reporting date Because the Company has not elected to designate the forward exchange

contracts for hedge accounting treatment changes in the fair value of the forward exchange contracts are recognized

immediately in earnings

During 2004 the Company entered into an interest rate swap agreement to convert the fixed rate on portion $50.0 million

of Koppers Inc.s Senior Secured Notes to floating rate based on six-month LIBOR rates plus specified spread On

October 15 2009 and concurrent with the redemption of the Senior Secured Notes the swap was terminated which resulted in

gain of $1.6 million The swap agreement required semiannual cash settlements of interest paid or received The differential

between the interest paid or interest received from semi-annual settlements were recorded as an adjustment to interest

expense The effect of the swap for the year ended December 31 2009 including the gain on termination was decrease in

interest expense of approximately $2.3 million For the year ended December 31 2008 the effect of the swap decreased

interest expense by approximately $0.3 million and for the year ended December 31 2007 the effect of the swap increased

interest expense by approximately $0.5 million

The swap hedged the Companys exposure related to changes in interest rates on the fair value of the Companys fixed rate

debt The swap was accounted for as fair value hedge and has been determined to have no ineffectiveness as the critical

terms of the swap were aligned with the hedged item Any changes in the fair value of the swap were offset by an equal and

opposite change in the fair value of the hedged item therefore there was no net impact on reported earnings Accordingly the

principal amount of the Senior Secured Notes subject to the interest rate swap was adjusted to fair value The fair value of the

swap agreement at December 31 2008 was an asset of $1 .9 million which is recorded in other assets in the balance sheet

Asset retirement obligations Asset retirement obligations are initially
recorded at fair value and are capitalized as part of the

cost of the related long-lived asset when sufficient information is available to estimate fair value The capitalized costs are

subsequently charged to depreciation expense over the estimated useful life of the related long-lived asset The fair value of the

obligation is determined by calculating the discounted value of expected future cash flows and accretion expense is recorded

each month to ultimately increase this obligation to full value

The Company recognizes asset retirement obligations for the removal and disposal of residues dismantling of certain tanks

required by governmental authorities cleaning and dismantling costs for owned rail cars and cleaning costs for leased rail cars

and barges
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Potential Acquisition of Cindu Chemicals B.V

Koppers Inc signed letter of intent in December 2009 to acquire 100 percent of the outstanding shares of Cindu Chemicals

By Cindu Cindu is privately-owned joint venture of Cindu B.V and Corus Staal B.V The proposed transaction is subject

to the negotiation and execution of definitive purchase and sale agreement certain regulatory approvals consultation with

Cindus Works Council and other customary closing conditions The Company will fund the acquisition primarily with cash

upon completion which may occur in the first quarter of 2010

Cindu operates 140000 metric ton tar distillation plant in Uithoorn Netherlands and its operations are similar to those of

other plants within the Carbon Materials and Chemicals segment Primary products include carbon pitch naphthalene carbon

black feedstock and certain specialty products and coatings

Business Dispositions

Sale of Koppers Monessen Partners LP

On October 2008 Koppers Inc and limited partner sold Koppers Monessen Partners LP Monessen to ArcelorMittal S.A

for cash of $160.0 million plus working capital of $10.0 million Net cash proceeds after deduction for the limited partner

interest taxes and transaction costs were approximately $100 million The Company recognized an after-tax gain of $85.9

million in 2008 and an after-tax loss of 0.3 million in 2009 the latter representing purchase price adjustments Monessen is

metallurgical furnace coke
facility

that was 95 percent-owned by Koppers Inc which served as the general partner and five

percent-owned by limited partner Effective as of the end of the second quarter of 2008 Monessen was classified as

discontinued operation in the Companys statement of operations and earnings per share Monessen was part of the Carbon

Materials Chemicals business segment

Sale of Koppers Arch

On July 2007 the Company sold its 51 percent interest in Koppers Arch Investments Pty Limited and its subsidiaries

Koppers Arch to Arch Chemicals Inc for net cash proceeds of $14.3 million and recognized gain from the sate net of tax

of $6.7 million Effective as of this date Koppers Arch was classified as discontinued operation in the Companys statement of

operations and earnings per share Koppers Arch was part of the Carbon Materials Chemicals business segment

Net sales and operating profit from discontinued operations for the two years ended December 31 2008 consist of the

following amounts

Year Eeded December 31

2008 2007

Net sales $50.2 $99.4

Operating profit .4 6.8

Diluted earnings per common share

Income from discontinued operations $0.21 $0.42

Gain on sale of Koppers Arch 0.32

Gain on sale of Monessen 4.14

Earnings per common share discontinued operations $4.35 $0.74

Other Plant Closures and Due Diligence Costs

In December 2009 the Company announced the pending sale of its Gainesville wood treatment plant This plant was part of

the Companys Railroad Utility Products business

In 2009 the Company expensed due diligence costs of $1.7 million related to the proposed acquisition of Cindu Chemicals By

In 2007 the Company expensed due diligence costs of $6.8 million related to potential acquisition which was not

consummated Both activities related to the Companys Carbon Materials Chemicals business and are charged to selling

general and administrative expenses
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Restricted stock units were also granted under 2004 Restricted Stock Unit Plan which vested ratably over five years All

restricted stock units issued under the 2004 Restricted Stock Unit Plan have vested by December 31 2008

Compensation expense for nonvested stock units is recorded over the vesting period based on the fair value at the date of

grant The fair value of stock units is the market price of the underlying common stock on the date of grant

The following table shows summary of the performance stock units as of December 31 2009

Minimum Target Maximum

Shares Shares SharesPerformance Period

20072009 65140 97710

20082010 46774 70161

20092011 141732 212598

The following table shows summary of the status and activity of nonvested stock awards for the year ended December 31

2009

Weighted Average

Restricted Performance Total Grant Date Pair

Stock Units Stock Units Stock Units Value
per

Unit

Nonvested at January 12009 48700 112907 161607 $31.82

Granted 70527 144327 214854 $15.26

Credited from dividends 659 1499 2158 $39.21

Vested 5769 5769 $25.91

Forfeited 1730 2595 4325 $15.26

Nonvested at December 31 2009 112387 256138 368525 $22.50

Also under the LTIP the Company awarded nonqualified stock options to certain employee participants which vest and become

exercisable upon the completion of three-year service period commencing on the third anniversary of the grant date The

stock options have term of 10 years There are special vesting provisions for the stock options related to change in control

In accordance with accounting standards compensation expense for unvested stock options is recorded over the vesting period

based on the fair value at the date of grant The fair value of stock options on the date of grant is calculated using the Black

Scholes-Merton model and the assumptions listed below

February 2009 Grant
February 2008 Grant May2007 Grant

Grant date price per share of option award $15.26 $39.99 $29.97

Expected dividend yield per share 2.50% 2.00% 2.50%

Expected life in years
6.5 6.5 6.5

Expected volatility
51.00% 40.67% 40.39%

Risk-free interest rate 2.05% 3.28% 4.45%

Grant date fair value per share of option awards 6.19 $14.79 $11.01

The dividend yield is based on the Companys current and prospective dividend rate which calculates continuous dividend

yield based upon the market price of the underlying common stock The expected life in years is based on the simplified method

permitted under Securities and Exchange Commission Staff Accounting Bulletin No 107 which calculates the average of the

weighted vesting term and the contractual term of the option This method was selected due to the lack of historical exercise

data with respect to the Company Expected volatility is based on the historical volatility of the Companys common stock and

the historical volatility of certain other similar public companies The risk-free interest rate is based on U.S Treasury bill rates for

the expected life of the option



he table ow surer
ry

the status and activity of stock opt ons the yr ar or Jen Do ombi 31

Out
JinçJ Jar uary 2009 10331 $34 40

ntc 14 104

Or md ng at December 2009

Exerc ablr cmber 31 2009

lock based cor rpensalio exper recognized for the three years ended Do err 31 2009 Nb

nrc

in ncr zrrd administrativi expenses $3

oP ted ft rnc tax benefit

Dc ie net cone attributable
to_Koppers _________ ______

$1

iii 200 00 Co npany revr rscd $08 million of accrued stocObased compenation ted to ts pn ci rice stock ir

cv mrd that rd beer granti in 2008 Stock based compenstiorm for 000 08 cnd no no 11 coo ct

smres and 13 000 shares respectively issued under the LTIP to members of the bozrd of direct in relatior ar nual directo

mpc Na As of December 31 2009 total future coo pensation expense related to on vested tock based romp rrs Iti

niornenu tot led $3 million and the weighted aver mge period over whirl xoei is ctr reco ni/c is

ariprox moldy months

Income Taxes

In ome Tax Pro vision

or cc oc tIe or io mrrys nc me tax orovision are as follow

08 13

1911

orient prc vision boric fit

ía igi

lot il aeferred ax provision Id

atol vcme Ox provision ________ _____

roan bet mica zie taxes foi 009 2008 ard 200 inc ided $42 mill Ic mmd

ri ie mtiari



The provision for income taxes is reconciled with the federal statutory rate as follows

Years Ended December 37

2009 2008 2007

Federal income tax rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%

State income taxes net of federal tax benefit 1.2 .0 .0

Taxes on foreign income 5.2 10.1 1.9

Domestic production activities deduction .2 .5

Non-deductible fines and penalties 1.1 0.8 0.7

Deferred tax adjustments 0.9 0.5

Change in tax contingency reserves 0.3 .0 0.4

Other 0.7 0.5 0.5

38.8% 46.2% 36.5%

The Company has not provided any U.S tax on undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries or joint ventures that are

reinvested indefinitely For the year ended December 31 2008 the Company provided deferred tax on 2008 unremitted

earnings of its European subsidiaries In 2009 deferred taxes were not provided on unremitted European earnings At

December 31 2009 consolidated retained earnings of the Company included approximately $65 million of undistributed

earnings from these investments

Koppers China Tax Holiday

As result of being Foreign Investment Enterprise in the manufacturing sector the Companys 60 percent-owned joint

venture in China is entitled to an income tax holiday under which it is exempted from corporate income tax for its first two

profit making years after deducting losses incurred in previous years and is entitled to 50 percent reduction in the corporate

tax for the succeeding three years The effect of the tax holiday on net income attributable to Koppers for the years ended

December 31 2008 and 2007 was approximately $0.4 million and $0.6 million respectively The tax holiday expired on

January 2009

Taxes Excluded from Net Income Attributable to Koppers

The amount of income tax provision benefit included in comprehensive income but excluded from net income attributable to

Koppers relating to adjustments to reflect the unfunded status of employee post-retirement benefit plans is $2.4 million $19.6

million and $5.0 million for the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively

The amount of income tax benefit included in stockholders equity deficit but excluded from net income attributable to

Koppers relating to the expense for restricted stock and employee stock options recognized differently for financial and tax

reporting purposes was $0.8 million and $1.2 million for the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively
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The Company recognizes interest expense and any related penalties from uncertain tax positions in income tax expense For

each year ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 the Company recognized $0.1 million $0.3 million and $0.1 million

respectively in interest and penalties As of December 31 2009 and 2008 the Company had accrued approximately $0.7

million and $0.7 million respectively for interest and penalties

Segment Information

The Company has two reportable segments Carbon Materials Chemicals and Railroad Utility Products The Companys

reportable segments are business units that offer different products The reportable segments are each managed separately

because they manufacture and distribute distinct products with different production processes The business units have been

aggregated into two reportable segments since management believes the long-term financial performance of these business

units is affected by similar economic conditions

The Companys Carbon Materials Chemicals segment is primarily supplier of carbon pitch naphthalene phthalic anhydride

creosote carbon black feedstock and carbon black Carbon pitch is critical raw material used in the production of aluminum

and for the production of steel in electric arc furnaces Naphthalene is used for the production of phthalic anhydride and as

surfactant in the production of concrete Phthalic anhydride is used in the production of plasticizers polyester resins and alkyd

paints Creosote is used in the treatment of wood and carbon black feedstock is used in the production of carbon black Carbon

black is used primarily in the production of rubber tires

The Companys Railroad
Utility

Products segment sells treated and untreated wood products and services primarily to the

railroad and public utility
markets Railroad products include procuring and treating items such as crossties switch ties and

various types of lumber used for railroad bridges and crossings Utility products include transmission and distribution poles and

pilings

The Company evaluates performance and determines resource allocations based on number of factors the primary measure

being operating profit or loss from operations Operating profit does not include equity in earnings of affiliates other income

interest expense or income taxes Operating profit also excludes the operating costs of Koppers Holdings Inc the parent

company of Koppers Inc The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as those described in the summary of

significant accounting policies Intersegment transactions are eliminated in consolidation
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Revenues and Long-lived Assets by Geographic Area

Long-lived

Year Revenue assets

Dollars in millions

United States 2009 649.1 $149.1

2008 723.6 153.6

2007 712.9

Australasia 2009 239.4 73.4

2008 261.8 63.9

2007 217.3

Europe 20C9 144.1 14.9

2008 223.7 15.2

2007 203.0

Other countries 2009 91.8

2008 155.7

2007 122.4

Total 2009 $1124.4 $237.4

2008 1364.8 232.7

2007 1255.6

Revenues by geographic area in the above table are attributed by the destination country of the sale Revenues from foreign

countnes totaled $475.3 million in 2009 $641.2 million in 2008 and $542.7 million in 2007 Revenues from one customer of

the Carbon Materials Chemicals segment and one customer from the Railroad Utility Products segment represented

approximately 11 percent each of the Companys consolidated revenues in 2009

Segment Revenues for Significant Product Lines

Year Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007

Dollars in millions

Carbon Materials Chemicals

Carbon pitch 302.9 401.6 360.3

Creosote and carbon black feedstock 76.3 119.1 87.2

Phthalic anhydride 67.3 101.6 102.2

Naphthalene 49.8 56.9 57.4

Carbon black 45.4 64.8 43.2

Other products 113.5 148.0 125.8

655.2 892.0 776.1

Railroad Utility Products

Railroad crossties 298.1 305.7 312.7

Utility poles 66.8 80.2 78.8

Creosote 60.6 42.4 45.6

Other products 43.7 44.5 42.4

469.2 472.8 479.5

Total $11 24.4 $1364.8 $1255.6
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13 Goodwill and Other Identifiable Intangible Assets

The change in the carrying amount of goodwill attributable to each business segment for the years ended December 31 2009

and December 31 2008 was as follows

carbon Materials Railroad

chemicals Utility Products Total

Dollars
iii

millions

Balance at December 31 2007 $60.3 2.2 $62.5

Currency translation 3.7 0.4 4.1

Balance at December 31 2008 56.6 1.8 58.4

Currency translation 2.8 0.4 3.2

Balance at December 31 2009 $59.4 2.2 $61.6

The Companys identifiable intangible assets with finite lives are being amortized over their estimated useful lives and are

summarized below

December31

2009 2008

Gross
Gross

Carrying Accumulated Cartying Accumulated

Amount Amortization Net Amount Amortization Net

Dollaro inn nnhlliono

Customer contracts 9.6 $5.3 $4.3
9.4 $4.3 $5.1

Non-compete agreements 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.1

Total $10.8 $6.5 $4.3 $10.5 $5.4 $5.1

In 2009 and 2008 the gross carrying value of the Companys intangible assets increased decreased by $0.3 million and $1 .3

million respectively due to foreign currency translation The customer contracts have estimated useful lives of 10 years and the

non-compete agreements have estimated useful lives of years Total amortization expense related to these identifiable

intangible assets was $0.8 million $0.9 million and $1.5 million for the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007

respectively Estimated amortization expense for the proceeding five years is summarized below

Estimated

annual

amortization

Dollarn in millions

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

$0.7

0.7

0.7

0.7

0.7
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Company realized loss on extinguishment of debt totaling $9.2 million consisting of $6.1 million for bond premium and $3.1

million for the write-off of deferred financing costs

In 2008 the Company repurchased Senior Secured Notes with face value of $32.5 million The Senior Secured Notes were

repurchased at discount to face value and accordingly the Company realized gain on extinguishment of debt totaling $1.4

million consisting of $2.1 million for bond discount partially offset by $0.7 million for the write-off of deferred financing costs

The Company had notional $50.0 million interest rate swap to convert portion of the Senior Secured Notes from fixed-

interest rate debt to floating-interest rate debt On October 2009 and concurrent with the redemption of the Senior

Secured Notes the swap was terminated which resulted in gain of $1.6 million which was recorded in interest expense The

Senior Secured Notes subject to the notional amount of the interest rate swap is reflected at fair value at each balance sheet

date At December 31 2008 the impact of the interest rate swap increased the carrying value of the Senior Secured Notes by

$1.9 million

Senior Discount Notes

All of the outstanding Koppers Holdings 9/e percent Senior Discount Notes due 2014 the Senior Discount Notes were

redeemed in December 2009 through tender offer and call The Senior Discount Notes had principal amount $203.0 million

The Senior Discount Notes were redeemed at premium to principal value and accordingly the Company realized loss on

extinguishment of debt totaling $13.2 million consisting of $10.0 million for bond premium $2.6 million for the write-off of

deferred financing costs and $0.6 million for bond tender expenses

Guarantees

The Companys 60-percent owned subsidiary in China has issued guarantee of $21.5 million in support of the Companys

30-percent investment in Tangshan Koppers Kailuan Carbon Chemical Company Limited TKK The guarantee relates to

bank debt ncurred by TKK which matures in August 2011

Debt Maturities and Deferred Financing Costs

At December 31 2009 the aggregate debt maturities for the next five years are as follows

Df/a /n ni//ios

2010 0.2

2011 0.1

2012

2013 40.0

2014

Thereafter 300.0

Total maturities 340.3

Future accretion on Senior Notes 5.0

Total debt $335.3

Deferred financing costs associated with the credit facilities the issuance of the Senior Notes and the other retired debt

obligations totaled $10.8 million and $16.7 million at December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively and are being amortized over

the life of the related debt Unamortized deferred financing costs net of accumulated amortization of $0.8 million and $7.4

million at December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively were $10.0 million and $9.3 million at December 31 2009 and 2008

respectively and are included in other assets
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Net periodic pension cost benefit that is expected to be recognized from the amortization of prior service cost net loss and

transition asset is estimated to total $0.1 million $4.8 million and $0.3 million respectively for all plans in 2010

The change in the funded status of the pension and postretirement plans as of December 31 2009 and December 31 2008 is

as follows

Dollars in millions

Change in benefit obligation

December31

Other Benefits

2009 2008

$176.9 $195.2 $13.6

2.8 3.1 0.2

10.8 11.7 0.8

0.2 0.3

14.3 1.7 0.3

0.4

3.5

3.8

6.2 15.8

9.3 9.0Benefits paid

Benefit obligation at end of year
201.9 76.9 13.6 13.6

Change in plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year
113.4 182.5

Actual return on plan assets 20.8 43.0

Employer contribution 2.1 2.0 1.3 1.3

Plan participants contributions 0.2 0.3

Settlements 5.4

Currency translation 5.6 3.9

Benefits paid 9.3 9.1 1.3 1.3

Fair value of plan assets at end of year
32.8 3.4

Funded status of the plan 69.1 63.5 $13.6 $13.6

Amounts recognized in the balance sheet consist of

Noncurrent assets 0.9

Current liabilities 0.4 0.1 1.3 1.3

Noncurrent liabilities 69.6 63.4 12.3 12.3

Pension plans with benefit obligations in excess of plan assets

Benefit obligation
$193.3 $176.9

Fairvalueofplanassets
123.3 113.4

Pension plans with accumulated benefit obhgations in excess of plan assets

Accumulated benefit obligation $185.4 $164.1

Fair value of plan assets 123.3 107.5

The measurement date for the U.S Australian and United Kingdom pension and postretirement assets and obligations is

December 31 for each respective year

The accumulated benefit obligation for all defined benefit pension plans as of December 31 2009 and 2008 was $193.9 million

and $169.7 million respectively

Pension Benefits

2009 2008

Benefit obligation at beginning of year

Service cost

Interest cost

Plan participants contributions

Actuarial gains losses

Plan amendments

Settlements

Curtailments

Currency translation

$14.4

0.2

0.8

0.5

1.3 1.3
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The Companys investment strategy for its pension plans is to maintain an adequate level of diversification to reduce interest

rate and market risk and to provide adequate liquidity to meet immediate and future benefit payment requirements The

Companys overall investment strategy is to achieve mix of growth seeking assets principally U.S and international public

company equity securities and income generating assets principally debt securities real estate and cash Currently the

Company targets an allocation of 50 percent to 75 percent growth seeking assets and 25 percent to 50 percent income

generating assets The Company utilizes investment managers to assist in identifying and monitoring investments that meet

these allocation criteria

The investment valuation policy of the Company is to value investments at fair value Most of our assets are invested in pooled

or commingled investment vehicles The Companys interest in these investment vehicles is expressed as unit of account with

value per unit that is the result of the accumulated values of the underlying investments Equity securities are typically priced on

daily basis using the closing market price from the exchange the security is traded Debt securities are typically priced on

daily basis by independent pricing services The fair value of real estate investments are either priced through listing on an

exchange or are subject to periodic appraisals

The pension assets are all substantially held in pooled or commingled investment vehicles The following table sets forth by level

the Companys pension plan assets at fair value within the fair value hierarchy as of December 31 2009

As of December31 2009

Quoted pnces

in active Significant

markets for observable

identical assets inputs

Level Level

Significant

unobservable

inputs

LevelS Total

Dollars in millions

U.S equity securities 64.0 64.0

International equity securities 27.4 27.4

U.S debt securities 17.8 17.8

International debt securities 17.7 17.7

Real estate and other investments 2.1 2.1

Cash and cash equivalents 3.8 3.8

$132.8 $132.8

Health Care Cost Trend Rates

The 2009 initial health care cost trend rate is assumed to be ten percent and is assumed to decrease gradually to five percent in

2014 and remain at that level thereafter The assumed health care cost trend rate has significant effect on the amounts

reported for other postretirement benefit liability one-percentage-point change in the assumed health care cost trend rate

would have the following effects

1% increase 7% Decrease

Dollars in millions

Increase decrease from change in health care cost trend rates

Postretirement benefit expense

Postretirement benefit liability
0.5 0.4

Incentive Plan

The Company has short-term management incentive plans that pay cash bonuses if certain Company performance and

individual goals are met The charge to operating expense for these plans was $4.5 million in 2009 $4.7 million in 2008 and

$6.7 million in 2007



Common Stock and Senior Convertibe Preferred Stock

Changes in senior convertible preferred stock common stock and trrasu tock fr the ree years ended Dce bcr 31 2009

are as tohows

Balance at beginnin and end of year

Balance at beginning of year 20 9/1 20 3LQ

15 fxernployee stock plans

Balince at end of year 124 2109/ 20971

Balance at hr ginning of year

Shares repurchased

Balance at end of yesr _______ 69 629

Common Stock

In February 2008 the board of director approved $15.0 million common stock repurcf ise proqnrn whet exp cc ii fobrnary
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18 Far Vaue of flnanda nstruments

Carrying amounts and the related est ed fir values of the Company nancia instruments as of cembe 31 2003

2008 arc as follows

Cash and cash equivalents includi restricted cash SB 61 6/

Short term investments

mv str icnts and other assets

Log1erm debt including current portion ______ 344 3S3 $3254 $3149

Lxi ierLy eth nvesiyx

ash and short tori investments The carrying amount approxonates fair value becaus thc short Taturty of thosc

instruments

/nvectrr ents nd other aset Represe ifs the brokeiquoted cash su render $u on life insura cc pol cie id in 2008 the

viterest rate swap fair value adjustrn nt This interest rate swap is further described in Notc The ash irr nder value aftot is

cI ssified rs vol in the valuation hie archy and is measured from values received 4rum hr insuring entity

tong term bt Fo 2009 the fair value of the Company long term debt is estimator baed on the rk ces fo

same or nlar issues or on the cur ent rates offered the Company for dr bt of if sam remaining iturit es el

2008 the fair value of long or debt is estimated based upon quoted arket ices Levr Thc far values the revniviri
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19 Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

Koppers Inc and its subsidiaries are involved in litigation and various proceedings relating to environmental laws and regulations

and toxic tort product liability and other matters Certain of these matters are discussed below The ultimate resolution of these

contingencies is subject to significant uncertainty and should the company fail to prevail in any of these legal matters or should

several of these legal matters be resolved against the Company in the same reporting period these legal matters could

individually or in the aggregate be material to the consolidated financial statements

Legal Proceedings

Coal Tar Pitch Cases Koppers Inc along with other defendants is currently defendant in lawsuits filed in variety of states

in which the plaintiffs claim they suffered variety of illnesses including cancer as result of exposure to coal tar pitch sold by

the defendants There are 112 plaintiffs in 62 cases pending as of December 31 2009 as compared to 99 plaintiffs in 55 cases

at December 31 2008 As of December 31 2009 there are total of 56 cases pending in state court in Pennsylvania one case

each pending in state courts in Tennessee Washington and Illinois two cases pending in an Indiana state court and one case

pending in the United States District Court for the District of Oregon

The plaintiffs in all 62 pending cases seek to recover compensatory damages while plaintiffs in 50 cases also seek to recover

punitive damages The plaintiffs in the 56 cases filed in Pennsylvania state court seek unspecified damages in excess of the

courts minimum jurisdictional limit The plaintiffs in the two cases filed in Indiana state court and the one case filed in

Washington state court also seek damages in an unspecified amount The plaintiff in the Oregon case seeks damages in excess

of $1.8 million The plaintiffs in the Tennessee state court case each seek damages of $1 5.0 million The plaintiff in the Illinois

state court case seeks compensatory damages in excess of $50000

The other defendants in these lawsuits vary from case to case and include companies such as Beazer East Inc United States

Steel Corporation Honeywell International Inc Vertellus Specialties Inc Dow Chemical Company Rust-Oleum Corporation

UCAR Carbon Company Inc Exxon Mobil Corporation Chemtura Corporation SGL Carbon Corporation Alcoa Inc and

PPG Industries Inc Discovery is proceeding in these cases The Company has not provided reserve for these lawsuits because

at this time the Company cannot reasonably determine the probability of loss and the amount of loss if any cannot be

reasonably estimated The timing of resolution of these cases cannot be reasonably determined Although Koppers Inc is

vigorously defending these cases an unfavorable resolution of these matters may have material adverse effect on the

Companys business financial condition cash flows and results of operations No trial dates have been set in any of these cases

Somerville Cases Koppers Inc is currently defending five sets of state court cases in Texas Antu Baade Davis Hensen and

Moses involving approximately 160 plaintiffs who allegedly have worked or resided in Somerville Texas where Koppers Inc

has operated wood treatment plant since 1995 Koppers Inc has been named but not served as defendant in another

Texas state court case Asselin involving 11 plaintiffs who allegedly worked or resided in Somerville Texas These cases are

pending in Burleson County Texas and Tarrant County Texas In addition to those Texas state court cases Koppers Inc is

defending one case Gonzalez that is pending in the Circuit Court of Cook County Illinois The Gonza/ez case initially involved

28 plaintiffs who allegedly worked or resided in Somerville Texas The court has dismissed 22 of the Gonzalez plaintiffs claims

but those plaintiffs have since filed motion to reconsider that ruling The court has not yet ruled on plaintiffs motion to

reconsider In addition as result of the filing
of demand for bill of particulars by Koppers Inc the court has stricken the

complaint of the remaining eight plaintiffs and ordered them to file an amended complaint

The BNSF Railway Company BNSF has also been named as defendant in these cases The complaints allege that plaintiffs

have suffered personal injuries including death in some cases resulting from exposure to wood preservative chemicals used at

the Somerville Texas wood treatment plant The complaints in the Moses Davis and Asse/in cases additionally allege that

plaintiffs have suffered property damage

The complaints seek to recover various damages for each plaintiff including compensatory and punitive damages within the

jurisdictional limits of the court for among other things bodily injuries pain
and mental anguish emotional distress medical

monitoring medical expenses
diminished earning capacity permanent disability physical impairment and/or disfigurement loss

of companionship and society loss of consortium devaluation of property loss of use and enjoyment of personal property loss

of use and enjoyment of real property property damage property remediation costs funeral and burial expenses and lost

wages
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petition to transfer the trials to Oxford The plaintiffs motion for rehearing en banc was denied in October 2009 On

January 2010 plaintiffs filed petition for writ of certiorari with the United States Supreme Court and on February 2010

Koppers Inc filed its brief in opposition

Ellis Case There are approximately 1180 plaintiffs in this case Each plaintiff seeks compensatory damages from the

defendants of at least $5.0 million for each of seven counts and punitive damages of at least $10.0 million for each of three

counts in addition to damages for an unspecified amount for trespass and nuisance The Ellis complaint also requests injunctive

relief These cases have been stayed and no trial dates have been scheduled pending the completion of the trials for the

remaining 11 plaintiffs in the Beck case The timing of the resolution of these cases is not known at this time

Grenada State Court Cases The state court cases were brought on behalf of approximately 200 plaintiffs in five counties in

Mississippi Each plaintiff seeks compensatory damages from the defendants of at least $5.0 million for each of up to eight

counts and punitive damages of at least $10.0 million for each of three counts Certain plaintiffs also seek damages for alleged

trespass and private nuisance in unspecified amounts together with injunctive relief The Mississippi Supreme Court ordered that

the claims of the plaintiffs in the pending state court cases filed in counties other than Grenada County approximately 110

cases be severed and transferred to Grenada County Plaintiffs counsel attempted to transfer ten such cases to Grenada

County but all ten cases were dismissed by the Court in Grenada County Plaintiffs counsel has not attempted to transfer any

additional cases to Grenada County and defendants have filed motions to dismiss the remaining plaintiffs in the four

non-Grenada County cases which motions remain pending No trial dates have been scheduled in these cases The timing of

the resolution of these cases is not known at this time

With respect to the state court case that was originally filed in Grenada County the plaintiffs filed 104 individual complaints in

Grenada County Subsequently 46 of the cases were dismissed for various procedural reasons and summary judgments based

on the Mississippi statute of limitations were entered in 40 of the cases Plaintiffs appealed the summary judgment orders to the

Mississippi Supreme Court which has not yet ruled on the appeals Oral argument is scheduled before the Mississippi Supreme

Court for March 2010 In the remaining 18 cases on September 2009 the Circuit Court granted the Companys motions

to dismiss or in the alternative for summary judgment and subsequently denied the plaintiffs motion for reconsideration on

October 2009 Plaintiffs have also filed notices of appeal to the Mississippi Supreme Court in these 18 cases Oral argument

has not yet been scheduled for these cases One other case the Harlow case remains pending in Grenada County In Harlow

the plaintiff is seeking actual and compensatory damages in excess of $20.0 million and punitive damages in an unspecified

amount Discovery is proceeding in that case The timing of the resolution of the two appeals and the Harlow case is not known

at this time

Discontinued Operations The Company sold its 51 percent interest in Koppers Arch Investments Pty Limited and its

subsidiaries Koppers Arch in July 2007 to Arch Chemicals Inc and has provided an indemnity to Arch Chemicals for the

Companys share of liabilities if any arising from certain types of obligations and claims that arose prior to the Companys sale

of its interest in Koppers Arch Koppers Inc has received notice from Arch Chemicals relating to legal actions that have been

filed in the High Court of New Zealand Auckland Registry against third party and against Arch Wood Protection NZ Limited

by competitor of Arch Wood Protection NZ Limited The competitor/plaintiff alleges among other things claims of

defamation injurious falsehood conspiracy and violation of the New Zealand Fair Trading Act Reserving all rights Koppers has

agreed to participate in the payment of attorneys fees and related expenses relating to these matters until further notice The

plaintiff seeks damages of approximately $6 million The Company has not provided reserve for these matters because at this

time it cannot reasonably determine the probability of loss and the amount of loss if any cannot be reasonably estimated

The timing of resolution of these cases cannot be reasonably determined An unfavorable resolution of these matters may have

material adverse effect on the Companys business financial condition cash flows and results of operations
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regard to the date of the alleged conduct and iv product liability claims for products sold by Beazer East or its predecessors

without regard to the date of the alleged conduct If the third party claims described in sections and ii above are not made

by July 2019 Beazer East will not be required to pay the costs arising from such claims under the Indemnity However with

respect to any such claims which are made by July 2019 Beazer East will continue to be responsible for such claims under the

Indemnity beyond July 2019 The Indemnity provides for the resolution of issues between Koppers Inc and Beazer East by an

arbitrator on an expedited basis upon the request of either party The arbitrator could be asked among other things to make

determination regarding the allocation of environmental responsibilities between Koppers Inc and Beazer East Arbitration

decisions under the Indemnity are final and binding on the parties

Contamination has been identified at most manufacturing and other sites of the Companys subisidiaries Three sites currently

owned and operated by Koppers Inc in the United States are listed on the National Priorities List promulgated under the

Comprehensive Environmental Response Compensation and Liability Act of 1980 as amended CERCLA Currently at the

properties acquired from Beazer East which include all of the National Priorities List sites and all but one of the sites permitted

under the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act RCRA significant portion of all investigative cleanup and closure

activities are being conducted and paid for by Beazer East pursuant to the terms of the Indemnity In addition other of Koppers

Incs sites are or have been operated under RCRA and various other environmental permits and remedial and closure activities

are being conducted at some of these sites

To date the parties that retained assumed and/or agreed to indemnify the Company against the liabilities referred to above

including Beazer East have performed their obligations in all material respects The Company believes that for the last three

years amounts paid by Beazer East as result of its environmental remediation obligations under the Indemnity have averaged

in total approximately $1 million per year Periodically issues have arisen between Koppers Inc and Beazer East and/or other

indemnitors that have been resolved without arbitration Koppers Inc and Beazer East engage in discussions from time to time

that involve among other things the allocation of environmental costs related to certain operating and closed facilities

If for any reason including disputed coverage or financial incapability one or more of such parties fail to perform their

obligations and the Company or its subsidiaries are held liable for or otherwise required to pay all or part of such liabilities

without reimbursement the imposition of such liabilities on the Company or its subsidiaries could have material adverse effect

on its business financial condition cash flows and results of operations Furthermore the Company could be required to record

contingent liability on its balance sheet with respect to such matters which could result in negative adjustment to the

Companys net worth

Domestic Environmental Matters Koppers Inc has been named as potentially responsible party PRP at the Portland

Harbor CERCLA site located on the Willamette River in Oregon Koppers Inc has replied to an EPA Information request and has

executed PRP agreement which outlines the process to develop an allocation of past and future costs Koppers Inc currently

operates coal tar pitch terminal near the site The current estimate for past costs incurred in the remedial investigation/

feasibility study is $100 million Separate from the EPA activities natural resources damages assessment is being conducted by

local trustee group In September 2009 Koppers Inc received general notice letter notifying it that it may be PRP at the

Newark Bay CERCLA site In January 2010 Koppers Inc submitted response to the general notice letter asserting that Koppers

Inc is de minimus party in this site The Company has not provided reserve for these matters because at this time it cannot

reasonably determine the probability of loss and the amount of loss if any cannot be reasonably estimated An unfavorable

resolution of these matters may have material adverse effect on the Companys business financial condition cash flows and

results of operations

The Illinois Environmental Protection Agency the IEPA has requested that Koppers Inc conduct voluntary investigation of

soil and groundwater at its Stickney Illinois carbon materials and chemicals facility The IEPA advised Koppers Inc that it made

such request as result of reported release of oil-like material from Koppers Inc.s property into an adjacent river canal

Koppers Inc is conducting such investigation in cooperation with Beazer East The Company and Beazer East have commenced

investigation on this site pursuant to Plan submitted to the IEPA The Company has provided reserve for this matter totaling

$1.6 million as of December 31 2009

In August 2005 the Pennsylvania Department of Environmental Protection the PADEP proposed fine related to alleged

water discharge exceedances from storm water sewer pipe at the tar distillation facility
of Koppers Inc in Clairton

Pennsylvania In December 2006 Koppers Inc reached preliminary settlement of the fine with the PADEP for $0.5 million

subject to the negotiation and execution of consent order with the PADEP Negotiations with respect to the consent order are
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21 Selected Quarterly Financial Data Unaudited

The following is summary of the quarterly results of operations for the years ended December 31 2009 and 2008

Year Ended December 31 2009

Quarter 2d Quarter 3d Quarter 4th Quarter Fiscal Year

Dollars in millions except per share amounts

Statement of operations data

Net sales $272.7 $291.6 $289.8 $270.3 $1124.4

Operating profit 18.4 33.3 33.2 10.0 94.9

Income loss from continuing operationslal 4.8 12.6 17.1 12.8 21.7

Net income lossal 4.6 12.5 17.1 12.8 21.4

Net income loss attributable to Koppersial 4.1 11.7 16.4 13.4 18.8

Common stock data

Earnings loss per common share attributable to Koppers common
shareholders

Basic

Continuing operations 0.21 0.57 0.80 0.66 0.93

Discontinued operations 0.01 0.01

Earnings loss per basic common share 0.20 0.57 0.80 0.66 0.92

Diluted

Continuing operations 0.21 0.57 0.80 0.66 0.92

Discontinued operations 0.01 0.01

Earnings loss per diluted common share 0.20 0.57 0.80 0.66 0.91

Dividends declared per common share 0.22 0.22 0.22 0.22 0.88

Price range of common stock

High $22.47 $29.25 $33.47 $34.00 34.00

Low 9.29 14.02 21.39 24.93 9.29

In the fourth quarter of 2009 the Company refinanced its Senior Secured Notes and Senior Discount Notes and incurred loss on extinguishment of debt

totaling $22 million

Year Ended December31 2008

Quarter 20 Quarter 30 Quarter 40 Quarter Focal Year

Dollars in millions except per share amoun Is

Statement of operations data

Net sales $331.2 $375.3 $369.4 $288.9 $1364.8

Operating profit1 31.8 46.1 51.7 0.6 1302

Income loss from continuing operations 12.8 227 25.2 12.3 48.4

Net incomeb 13.8 24.7 26.1 74.1 138.7

Net income attributable to Koppersb 13.2 24.3 25.5 75.0 1380

Common stock data

Earnings loss per common share

Basic

Continuing operations 0.58 1.06 1.21 0.56 2.31

Discontinued operations 0.05 0.10 0.04 4.24 4.37

Earnings per basic common share 0.63 1.16 1.25 3.68 6.68

Diluted

Continuing operations 0.58 1.06 1.20 0.57 2.30

Discontinued operations 0.05 0.10 0.04 4.23 4.35

Earnings per diluted common share 0.63 1.16 1.24 3.66 6.65

Dividends declared per common share 0.22 0.22 0.22 0.22 0.88

Price range of common stock

High $45.76 $51.95 $48.90 $37.11 51.95

Low 31.34 39.11 33.83 12.60 12.60

In the fourth quarter of 2008 the Company ircurred
inventory

lower of cost or market charges totaling $3.9 million impairment charges for European

glycetirie plant totaling $3 million and severance costs related to work force reductions totaling $0 million

In the fourth quarter of 2008 the Corn pany sold its 95 percent interest in Koppers Monessen Partners LP Monessen and recognized gain of $85 million

net of tax The gain on the sale and the results of operations for Monessen totaling $4 million have been reclassified as discontinued operation in the

Companys statement of operations and
earnings per share for all periods presented
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Operations

For the Year Ended December 31 2007

Domestic

Guarantor Non-Guarantor Consolidating

Parent Koppers Inc Subsidiaries Subs diaries Adjustments Consolidated

Dollars in millions

Net sales $803.2 16.1 $461.9 $25.6 $1255.6

Cost of sales including depreciation and amortization 689.4 .2 387.9 7.7 1058.4

Selling general and administrative 2.0 40.9 0.1 29.1 72.1

Operating profit loss 2.0 72.9 27.2 44.9 17.9 125.1

Other income expense 74.9 0.5 0.1 75.0 0.3

Interest expense income 16.0 34.4 6.4 10.9 45.9

Income taxes 6.4 8.2 13.4 13.8 29.0

Income from continuing operations 63.3 30.3 14.3 24.6 82.0 50.5

Discontinued operations 6.6 9.4 16.0

Noncontrolling interests 3.2 3.2

Net income attributable to Koppers $63.3 30.3 20.9 30.8 $82.0 63.3

Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet

December 31 2009

Domes tic

Guarantor .NciriGuatustor Con.uiiidatirig

Parent Koppers Inc Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Adjustments Consolidated

Dollars in millions

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 0.2 12.9 45.3 58.4

S-T investments restricted cash 4.4 4.4

Accounts receivable net 36.1 121.3 415.8 83.1 516.7 139.6

Inventories net 78.9 74.0 0.2 52.7

Deferredtaxassets 10.0 1.5 8.5

Othercurrentassets 6.9 0.3 10.3 0.1 17.4

Total current assets 36.3 230.0 414.6 21 7.1 517.0 381.0

Equity investments 12.7 77.2 14.8 3.4 103.4 4.7

Property plant and equipment net 91.0 58.3 149.3

Goodwill 36.9 24.7 61.6

Deferredtaxassets 68.2 47.7 5.4 25.9

Other noncurrent assets 19.6 2.2 0.1 21.9

Total assets $49.0 522.9 $381.7 $31 1.1 $620.3 $644.4

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Accounts payable 0.6 473.9 10.2 99.3 $516.7 67.3

Accrued liabilities 4.6 29.4 0.1 30.4 64.3

Short-term debt and current portion of long-term debt 0.2 02

Total current liabilities 5.2 503.5 10.1 129.7 516.7 131.8

Long-term debt 335.1 335.1

Other long-term liabilities 96.3 26.4 122.7

Total liabilities 5.2 934.9 10.1 56.1 516.7 589.6

Koppers stockholders equity 43.8 412.0 371.6 144.0 103.6 43.8

Noncontrolling interests 11.0 110

Total liabilities and equity $49.0 522.9 $381.7 $31 1.1 $620.3 $644.4
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended December 31 2009

Parent Koppers Inc Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Adjustments Consolidated

Dollars in millions

Cash provided by used in operating activities 231.8 90.7 $22.5 $232.7 $1 2.3

Cash provided by used in investing activities

Capital expenditures and acquisitions 5.0 5.2 20.2

Net cash proceeds payments from divestitures and

asset sales 0.7 0.1 0.6

Net cash used in investing activities 15.7 5.1 20.8

Cash provided by used in financing activities

Borrowings repayments of long-term debt 213.6 142.8 70.8

Deferred financing costs 8.1 8.1

Dividends paid 18.0 232.7 232.7 18.0

Net cash provided by used in financing activities 231.6 98.0 232.7 96.9

Effect of exchange rates on cash 1.6 2.3 0.7

Net increase decrease in cash and cash equivalents 0.2 24.6 19.7 4.7

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 37.5 25.6 63.1

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 0.2 2.9 $45.3 58.4

Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended December 31 2008

Domestic

Guarantor Non-Guarantor Consolidating

Parent Koppers Inc Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Adjustments Consolidated

Dollars iii millions

Cash provided by used in operating activities 38.3 14.7 37.3 $38.4 51.9

Cash provided by used in investing activities

Capital expenditures and acquisitions 24.8 15.2 40.0

Net cash proceeds payments from divestitures and

asset sales 158.4 2.3 160.7

Net cash used in investing activities 133.6 12.9 120.7

Cash provided by used in financing activities

Borrowings repayments of long-term debt 74.0 9.3 83.3

Deferred financing costs 2.7 2.7

Dividends paid 17.2 38.4 38.4 17.2

Stock issued repurchased 21.3 1.4 19.9

Net cash provided by used in financing activities 38.5 113.7 9.3 38.4 123.1

Effect of exchange rates on cash 2.9 3.7 0.8

Net increase decrease in cash and cash equivalents 0.2 37.5 1.4 48.7

Add Cash of assets held for sale at beginning of year
0.6 0.6

Less Cash of assets held for sale at end of year

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 0.2 13.6 13.8

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 37.5 25.6 63.1

Domestic

Guarantor Non-Guarantor Consolidating
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Separate condensed consolidating financial statement information for the parent Koppers Inc domestic guarantor subsidiaries

foreign guarantor subsidiaries and non-guarantor subsidiaries as of December 31 2009 and 2008 and for the years ended

December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 is as follows

Condensed Consolidating Statement of Operations

For the Year Ended December 31 2009

Domestic Foreign

Guarantor Guarantor

Subsidiaries Subsidiaries

Non-Guarantor Consolidating

Parent Koppers mc Subsidiaries Adjustments Consolidated

Dollars in millions

Net sales $709.1 $33.0 $355.6 $79.3 $52.6 $1124.4

Cost of sales including depreciation and

amortization 640.9 3.7 296.0 67.0 28.8 971.4

Selling general and administrative 1.8 28.8 3.0 20.5 4.0 58.1

Operating profit loss 1.8 39.4 33.7 39.1 8.3 23.8 94.9

Other income expense 40.2 0.5 0.3 0.4 1.3 40.2 0.7

Interest expense income 31.1 28.5 4.2 0.1 50 58.7

Income taxes 11.5 2.0 11.0 10.1 2.2 13.8

Income from continuing operations 8.8 9.4 22.4 25.2 4.9 59.0 21.7

Discontinued operations 0.3 0.3

Noncontrolling interests 2.6 2.6

Net income attributable to Koppers 18.8 9.1 $22.4 25.2 2.3 $59.0 18.8

Condensed Consolidating Statement of Operations

For the Year Ended December 31 2008

Domestic Foreign

Guarantor Guarantor Non-Guarantor Consolidating

Parent Koppers Inc Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Adjustments Consolidated

Dollarr in millions

Net sales $837.7 $46.1 $478.5 $83.0 80.5 $1364.8

Cost of sales including depreciation and

amortization 744.2 7.3 399.5 75.6 56.6 1170.0

Selling general and administrative 2.3 33.2 1.4 23.0 4.7 64.6

Operating profit loss 2.3 60.3 37.4 56.0 2.7 23.9 130.2

Other income expense 50.9 0.6 0.4 1.2 0.2 50.9 1.2

Interest expense income 7.5 26.9 6.4 9.4 41.4

Income taxes 6.9 12.0 21.6 14.5 0.4 41.6

Income from continuing operations 138.0 22.0 15.4 36.3 2.1 165.4 48.4

Discontinued operations 86.0 0.1 4.4 90.3

Noncontrolling interests 0.7 0.7

Net income attributable to Koppers $138.0 $108.0 $15.3 36.3 5.8 $165.4 138.0
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Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet

December 31 2009

Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Adjustments Consolidated
Parent Koppers Inc

Dollars in millions

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 0.2 12.9 36.9 8.4 58.4

S-T investments restricted cash 4.4 4.4

Accounts receivable net 36.1 121.3 415.8 42.2 41.1 516.9 139.6

Inventories net 78.9 67.0 7.0 0.2 152.7

Deferred tax assets 10.0 1.5 8.5

Other current assets 6.9 0.3 6.8 3.5 0.1 17.4

Total current assets 36.3 230.0 414.6 52.9 64.4 51 7.2 381.0

Equity investments 12.7 77.2 14.8 17.1 3.4 120.5 4.7

Property plant and equipment net 90.9 41.8 16.6 149.3

Goodwill 37.0 23.3 1.3 61.6

Deferred tax assets 68.2 47.7 5.4 25.9

Other noncurrent assets 19.6 0.8 1.4 0.1 21.9

Total assets $49.0 522.9 $381.7 $241.3 $87.1 $637.6 $644.4

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Accounts payable 0.6 473.9 10.2 91.5 8.0 $516.9 67.3

Accrued liabilities
4.6 29.4 0.1 20.5 9.9 64.3

Short-term debt and current portion of long-term

debt 0.2 0.2

Total current liabilities 5.2 503.5 10.1 112.0 17.9 516.9 131.8

Long-term debt 335.1 335.1

Other long-term liabilities
96.3 16.0 10.4 122.7

Total liabilities
5.2 934.9 10.1 128.0 28.3 516.9 589.6

Koppers stockholders equity
43.8 412.0 371.6 113.3 47.8 120.7 43.8

Noncontrolling interests 1.0 11.0

Total liabilities and equity $49.0 522.9 $381.7 $241.3 $87.1 $637.6 $644.4

Domestic Foreign

Guarantor

Subsidiaries

Guarantor Non-Guarantor Consolidating
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended December 31 2009

Domestic Foreign

Guarantor Guarantor

Subsidiries Subsidiaries

Non-Guarantor Consolidating

Subsidiaries Adjustments ConsolidatedParent Koppers Inc

Dollars in millions

Cash provided by used in operating activities 231.8 90.7 $1 9.5 $3.0 $232.7 $112.3

Cash provided by used in investing activities

Capital expenditures and acquisitions 5.0 3.7 1.5 20.2

Net cash proceeds payments from divestitures

and asset sales 0.7 0.1 0.6

Net cash used in investing activities 5.7 3.6 .5 20.8

Cash provided by used in financing activities

Borrowings repayments of long-term debt 213.6 142.8 70.8

Deferred financing costs 8.1 8.1

Dividends paid 18.0 232.7 232.7 18.0

Net cash provided by used in financing

activities 231.6 98.0 232.7 96.9

Effect of exchange rates on cash 1.6 2.3 0.7

Net increase decrease in cash and cash equivalents 0.2 24.6 18.2 1.5 4.7

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 37.5 18.7 6.9 63.1

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 0.2 12.9 $36.9 $8.4 58.4
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of

For the Year Ended December 31 2007

Cash Flows

Domestic Foreign

Guarantor Guarantor Non-Guarantor

Subsidiaries Subsidiaries

ITEM CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND

FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None

ITEM 9A CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management with the participation of our chief executive officer and chief financial officer have evaluated the

effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Rules 3a-1 5e and 5d-1 5e of the Securities Exchange

Act of 1934 as of the end of the period covered by this report Based on that evaluation our chief executive officer and chief

financial officer have concluded that these controls and procedures were effective as of the end of the period covered by this

report

bY Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during our most recent fiscal quarter that

have materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect our internal control over financial reporting

See Management Report on page 45 for managements annual report on internal control over financial reporting See Report of

Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on page 47 for Ernst Young attestation report on internal control over

financial reporting

Subsidiaries

consolidating

Adjustments ConsolidatedParent Koppers Inc

Collat-s in millions

Cash provided by used in operating activities 12.5 80.3 $1 1.5 $2.9 $0.3 $12.0 $66.1

Cash provided by used in investing activities

Capital expenditures and acquisitions 15.1 9.9 3.4 28.4

Net cash proceeds payments from

divestitures and asset sales 0.1 1.5 0.3 1.9

Net cash used in investing activities 5.0 .5 9.6 3.4 6.5

Cash provided by used in financing activities

Borrowings repayments of long-term debt 52.9 8.9 0.8 44.8

Dividends paid 11.5 14.6 12.0 14.1

Stock issued repurchased 0.9 1.2 0.3

Net cash provided by used in financing

activities 12.4 66.3 8.9 0.8 12.0 58.6

Effect of exchange rates on cash 1.0 1.0 0.1 2.1

Net increase decrease in cash and cash

equivalents 0.1 2.6 4.4 6.9

Add Cash of assets held for sale at beginning of

year 2.5 2.5

Cash of assets held for sale at end of year 0.6 0.6

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 0.1 9.9 8.8 8.8

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 0.2 7.3 6.3 $13.8
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PART IV

ITEM 15 EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

Financial Statements

Financial statements filed as part of this report are included in Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data as listed

on the index on page 44

Financial Statement Schedules

Schedule II Valuation and Qualifying Accounts and Reserves is included on page 97 All other schedules are omitted because

they are not applicable or the required information is contained in the applicable financial statements of notes thereto

Exhibits
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Exh/hOEx/b/t No

0.42 Asset Purchase Agreement dated April 28 2006 between Reilly Industries Inc and Koppers Inc incorporated

by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 28 2006

Q44 Form of Amendment to change in Control Agreement entered into as of May 25 2006 between the Company

and the named Executive incorporated by reference to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed on

May 26 2006

10.45 Joint Venture Contract in relation to the establishment of Tangshan Koppers Kailuan Carbon Chemical Co
LID among Kailuan Clean Coal Company Limited Koppers Mauritius and Tangshan Iron Steel Co Ltd

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.45 to the Koppers Holdings Inc Annual Report on Form 10-K for the

year ended December 31 2006
Q47 Amendment No to Treatment Services Agreement between Koppers Inc and CSX Transportation Inc dated

effective as of February 2007 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.47 to the Companys Quarterly Report

of Form 10-Q filed on May 2007
10.48 Koppers Holdings Inc Benefit Restoration Plan incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys

Quarterly Report on Form 0-Q filed on August 2007

10.49 Purchase Agreement dated as of August 2008 by and among Koppers Inc Carbon Investments Inc and

ArcelorMittal S.A incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.49 to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form 10-

filed on November 2008
Q5Q Amended and Restated Credit Agreement by and among Koppers Inc the Guarantors party thereto the

Lenders party thereto PNC Capital Markets LLC and RBS Greenwich Capital as Co-Lead Arrangers PNC

Capital Markets LLC Banc of America Securities LLC and RBS Greenwich Capital as Joint Bookrunners PNC

Bank National Association as Administrative Agent Bank of America NA as Documentation Agent and

Citizens Bank of Pennsylvania First Commonwealth Bank and Wells Fargo Bank N.A as Syndication Agents

dated as of October 31 2008

10.51 Koppers Inc Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan

10.52 Koppers Inc Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan II

10.53 Amendment to Employment Agreement with Steven Lacy effective as of January 2009

10.54 Amendment to Employment Agreement with Brian McCurrie effective as of January 2009

Q55 Amendment to Koppers Holdings Inc Benefit Restoration Plan effective as of January 2009

10.56 Amendment to the Employee Savings Plan of Koppers Inc and Subsidiaries effective as of January 2008

Q57 Amendment to the Retirement Plan for Koppers Inc effective January 2008

0.58 Amendment No to Amended and Restated Credit Agreement by and among Koppers Inc the Guarantors

party thereto the Lenders party thereto PNC Capital Markets LLC and RBS Greenwich Capital as Joint

Bookrunners PNC Bank National Association as Administrative Agent Bank of America N.A as

Documentation Agent and Citizens Bank of Pennsylvania First Commonwealth Bank and Wells Fargo Bank

N.A as Syndication Agents dated as of November 18 2009

2.1 Computation of ratio of earnings to fixed charges

21 List of subsidiaries the Company
23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14a

31 .2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14a

32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 1350

Management Contract or Comrmpensatory P/arm

Certain portions have been omitted pursuant to Confidential Treatment Request The entire document has been filed confidentially with the SEC

Filed herewith
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SCHEDULE II- VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
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Is DAVID HILLENBRAND

David Hillenbrand

Is WALTER TURNER

Walter Turner

Is BRIAN McCuRRIE

Brian McCurrie

/s CYNTHIA BALDWIN

Cynthia Baldwin

Is SHARON FENG

Sharon Feng

Is ALBERT NEuPAVER

Albert Neupaver

/s JAMES STAwER

James Stalder

Is STEPHEN TRITCH

Stephen Tritch

/5/ MICHAEL YOUNG

Michael Young

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 5d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended Koppers Holdings Inc

has duly caused this annual report on Form 10-K to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

K0PPER5 HOLDINGS INC

BY/s/ BRIAN McCURRiE

Brian McCurrie

Chief Financial Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended this annual report on Form 10-K has been

signed below by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the date indicated

Siqeature
Capacity

Date

Director and Non-Executive Chairman of

the Board

Director and Chief Executive Officer

_____________________________________________
Chief Financial Officer and Principal

Accounting Officer

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

February 19 2010

February 19 2010

February 19 2010

February 19 2010

February 19 2010

February 19 2010

February 19 2010

February 19 2010

February 19 2010
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Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATIONS

Brian McCurrie certify that

have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Koppers Holdings Inc

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state material

fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made not

misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report fairly present in

all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of and for the periods

presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officer and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and

procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a-1 5e and 5d-1 5e and internal control over financial reporting as

defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a-1 5f and sd-i 5f for the registrant and have

designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed

under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant including its consolidated

subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those entities particularly during the period in which this report is

being prepared

designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be

designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the

preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our

conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by

this report based on such evaluation and

disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the

registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an report that has materially

affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the registrants internal control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officer and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over

financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of registrants board of directors or persons

performing the equivalent functions

all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial

reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record process summarize and

report financial information and

any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have significant role in the

registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date February 19 2010

Is BRIAN McCuRR1E

Brian McCurrie

Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
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Oct Execut ye Officer Chief Financial Officer

Fcbruary 19 2010
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Shareholder Information World Headquarters

Transfer Agent Registrar of stock and Dividend Koppers Holdings Inc

Disbursing Agent 436 Seventh Avenue

BNY Mellon ShareownØr Services Pittsburgh Pennsylvania

480 Washington Boulevard 5219-1800

Jersey City NJ 07310 USA

Koppers-dedicated phone 866 293 5637 Telephone 412 227 2001

TDD for hearing impaired 800 231 5469

Foreign holders 201 680 6578

TDDforforeign holders 201 6806610 Global Locations
E-mail inquiries shrrelation@bnymellon.com
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